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2010 2009 change
HEEH Results of Operations
e Turnover 991,055 971,936 2.0%
E A Gross profit 640,557 592,608 8.1%
£ F &R Gross margin 64.6% 61.0% 5.9%
#8 5 s H| Profit from operations 171,936 88,724 93.8%
£ Ui B R Operating margin 17.3% 9.1% 90.1%
g - %7/ XNl Valuation gains/(losses) on investment
ik, (5 18) properties 20,500 (13,000) -257.7%
BERCR - /NI Net gain on disposal of
T % associate 7,899 - -
JRE A Wt 7 2 ) i ) Share of profits less losses
Ik 15 of associates 29,478 17,072 72.7%
A F)ME 3 R Profit attributable to equity
JE Ak s A shareholders of the Company 196,587 80,187 145.2%
#li A % Net profit margin 19.8% 8.3% 138.6%
& &3 A — B AR Earnings per share — basic $1.28 $0.52 146.2%
J& 1 F) — 4 v Earnings per share — diluted $1.28 $0.52 146.2%
B B B S Dividend per share $0.55 $0.38 44.7%
WK B Financial Position
M EE 24 Cash generated from operations 227,016 113,415 100.2%
Bl R 8RAT AF 3O Cash and bank deposits less
SR AT B K short-term bank loans and
i a overdrafts 167,591 224,097 -25.2%
B Net current assets 211,307 313,801 -32.7%
Ji o HE 25 Shareholders’ equity 922,413 779,302 18.4%
Ji% R HE 25 1] % Return on shareholders’ equity 21.3% 10.3% 106.8%
o EBEFEWEKFE LFA2%F B T - . Turnover increased by 2% to HK$991.1 million from last year.
. 8 A 21,7198 W ot K L 4F £ F+93.8% - . Profit from operations was HK$171.9 million, an increase of 93.8% as compared

with last year.

. AR N ) ME 28 B ROME A U R B 1,066 HE G (T I e Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$196.6 million (2009:

A ¢ 8,020 ik oT)

> H o A AN E AR
2,050 i e (ZEEJLAF ¢ fhE 11,3008 #70) -
WEA > A AR SR A B B R AR VR B 7908 I T o

HK$80.2 million) which included valuation gains on investment properties of HK$20.5
million (2009: valuation losses of HK$13.0 million). In addition, a net gain on disposal
of associate of HK$7.9 million was recorded during the year.
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[ Aquascutum ] £ 55 P % (1 & B R %0 ik 2 HE
B 48 S5 i A5 R > % 4 Ui b I L 3L 4240 AR
N R B b [ (B 45 (H A R A #E LR LA
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SR e
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2009/10 Annual Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of YGM Trading Limited, | would like
to present the shareholders with the Annual Report for the year ended
31 March 2010.

Group Results

The recovery recorded in the first six months continued into the second
half of the year under review. Although turnover increased only by 2% to
HK$991.1 million, the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
increased by 145.2% to HK$196.6 million from HK$80.2 million of the
previous year.

The acquisition of the intellectual property rights of Aquascutum, which
has significant impact on the future of the Company, was completed in
September 2009. Our Company had experiences in acquiring global
brands, such as the American label Hang Ten in 1994 and the French
brand Guy Laroche in 2004. In September 2009, the Company acquired
the absolute right to the name and intellectual property rights of
Aquascutum in relation to territories which consists of 42 countries and
regions in Asia including, but not limited to, the People’s Republic of
China, Hong Kong, Japan, the Republic of Korea, Indonesia, India, the
Philippines, Malaysia, Thailand, Taiwan, Singapore, Brunei and Macau.

The Group has been for many years a licensee of Aquascutum of the
United Kingdom and has made very good progress in developing the
brand name in Mainland China. With the ownership of the brand, the
Group can now develop all products together with the security of our
exclusive ownership rights in the future. Furthermore, the Group will save
royalty payments to the original licensor and collect royalty income from
other countries. Currently, a very healthy royalty income is generated
from Japan.



5 B [ Aquascutum | 7% 185 14F Ji 32 > — T i B0 2 5 W — AE A0 o b R OR B 0 e S BE 5 A K BT LB > [R) IR TS G IR I R
sl o RS Y i LR A R R P ST T R G VR A o i LR O AN AORS o B AR - R ME RES T
BRAF SR A5 B o MR W A4E > [Aquascurum | 52 B FHK - B Al > UEA AR RN FH I -

20094F 9H > A A T 2h W W [ Aquascucum | B B Y A 40 5K T AR 3 0 5 ) BE o RO s T Aquascurum | 5 A R Bk
IR ¢ T 455 4K BROBT B — B o 55 R 8 A 4 OK 2 Nl BE BT > B RTA M R o N A I 4 T [ Aquascurum ] FY 8 B 48 4% o

[ Aquascurum| — B 7% J % $2 Bt B 20 A IR B > 76 20044F 32 200647 S 20084 J6 15 U U 46 7 8 22 455 6 B o 7 A0 % [ Bl AL 2% it 34
— I 25 i 00 D W AR R 6 AL B 2 A A R R IR B R T o 20094 111 E 20104 1 K 20104530 ESH FHE o i BN R
SR [ b L % D s R O A O — G AR I 2R | AR A R 5 R AR o

British label Aquascutum has been a part of London city life since its establishment in 1851. Its heritage is rooted in excellent British tailoring and
it has always had a keen eye on fashion, creating an understated elegance and stylishly luxurious look. Its sartorial confidence, authentic quality and
fine craftsmanship shown in the faultless attention to detail is trusted throughout the world. Over the decades the brand has dressed the powerful:
British royalty, politicians and celebrities.

In September 2009, the Company acquired the exclusive and absolute right of Aquascutum in Asian territories. This acquisition is another milestone

in Aquascutum’s continuing expansion into the international fashion market.

Aquascutum’s high standard of service is well recognised. The brand achieved the ‘Service Retailer of the Year in Fashion & Accessories - High

Fashion Category’ of the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’ organised by the Hong Kong Retail Management Association four times from 2004 to
2006 and 2008. From November 2009 to January 2010 and from March to May 2010, the brand proudly achieved the ‘Service Category Leaders’
of the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’.

OF LONDON
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B Wl B Review of Operations
A BB R T Garment retail and marketing
R PEAM > FilLAETISEMHEE o The Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan markets recovered during
the year.
Aquascutum Aquascutum

[ Aquascutum] & B A7 &% A 95 B8] {81 45 19 5
R o A A [ i T M 4 R O T HOAS %E iR
o AR E R S T RS Kt
Ml 5 R SEAE L 7 o R B — AR =
HE > AGEER PR - A |
A E163M M o AL AR F
— A R N W A 0 PR R OR R o
e B 1 BRI IRE A 2R 6 R T A T AR B B [
W o

Ashworth

[ Ashworth] 7t 5 501 44 149 5 1 < BRI %
fi e R FE-FE=ZHE  AEER T

FEr i G B 75 M o

Michel René

[Michel Renél J& A< 4 B B — JL L /5 4 B 4f
R B RS ET S
I 2 i R o TR A R R (Y IR o
W oFE—FFEZAE > AREE AR
o~ Fis - M KA EEEG4H T -

Hang Ten

[Hang Ten] /i it — JL7/S F 4 AR 1) 35 44
5 B R A R A 2000 B0 RE B 8 S
WA AT NEBE S LS AR
) M ST H o [Hang Ten) 76 5 ~ & -
O A K A Bk O 2 B R
B AT RE K B0 T 3 A o O [l R AF BE Y
i A Bk A5 K R & o

HF FFHE L TR HE W s

Guy Laroche

N e = QU N E R
BE R o A B T Ax R A5 M EEAT IRR 2 R
T~ A LB A KR 55 A0 T I R R R
B % A T M B o R DA A AR R RZ 0 R
& o A 45 1 A8 R R A T 54 i AR
MR AE > PR E ARSI IR R A
i B B 5 -
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Aquascutum is a brand with great heritage in the United Kingdom.
The Group has also successfully marketed the brand to be a leading
men’s and ladies’ premium fashion label in Mainland China. As at
end of March 2010, the Group operates 163 outlets in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. An extensive expansion
strategy for the brand will be laid out in the upcoming year 2011.
The immediate benefit of the acquisition has not yet been fully
reflected in this financial period.

Ashworth

Ashworth is a leading global golf apparel brand. As at the end of
March 2010, the Group operates 75 outlets in our licensed markets
in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Southeast Asia.

Michel René

Michel René is our principal brand that we have marketed since 1976.
It is a middle market fashion label that offers consumers quality fashion
at a great value. As of end of March 2010, we operate 64 outlets in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

Hang Ten

Hang Ten is a famous American surf label established in the 1960's.
It is operated independently as a 20% owned associated company
and is independently quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. It has strong presence in the US, Taiwan, Korea, Mainland
China and many other countries worldwide. It reported a much
improved profit for the year under review.

Licensing and Royalty Income
Guy Laroche

The Group acquired this renown French brand in 2004. We continue
to develop the label by hosting fashion shows around the world,
maintaining a great designing team and a prestigious flagship in Paris.
We continue to cooperate with our licensee worldwide and provide
important guidance to ensure a good image worldwide.
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VR B 3% B M /G [ Ashworth] 7 19874F
oL s BN RGN - BN L
T T8 R Bk B AR P B IR &R 1 o AE S
Darrell Survey W % # & »
[ Ashworth | 155 #F ¢ Bk il 1 27 2 3 7 £
TGP — AL o X H 20024
220054 4 b 1 TR ) A R Ty
[ 5 5 2 5L W R M & H 2001
AR 5 20074F- 6 1% 1Y U8 (R Bk SCH) A
i (SRR ) B 2 [ B AT R R —
EB LR RME] -

2 4 B % [ Ashworth | K H 2 b [ % 48
[ 1 5 AR o [ Ashworth 75 3¢ )
2 A ROE R RE > #E20054F &
20084F- L A7 DY 47 6 15 75 ¥ 2 65 45 Bl
o B AR A T S — R
S A B K 5 A AL R 2 A AR O
FERBEZEER] o 20094E3H E5H E
R R E - 7R
SE Al B AL ) R 5 SR A R R o

Ashworth was established in California,
U.S.A. in 1987. It markets a full line of quality
men’s and women’s golf apparel and casual
merchandise, featuring natural style and
relaxed fit. According to the Darrell Survey of
the U.S.A., Ashworth has been ranked
‘Number One Apparel Brand in Golf” eleven
years in a row. The brand was also selected as
‘My Favorite Men’s Apparel’ by ‘China Golf’
Magazine from 2002 to 2005 and, “The Best
Golf Awards - Best Golf Apparel (Men)’ by
‘Golf Digest’ Magazine (Chinese Edition) four
times from 2001 to 2007.

The Group is the licensee for the Greater
China region and Thailand. Ashworth is also
highly recognised for its quality service.
Ashworth was awarded the ‘Service Retailer
of the Year in Fashion & Accessories — Sports
& Outdoor Products Category’ by the
‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’ during 2005
to 2008 as well as the Service Industry Leader
during March 2009 to May 2009 by the
Hong Kong Retail Management Association.
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Aquascutum International

Aqguascutum International it i 1§
[ Aquascutum] i 9 S5 A 1 5 B S7
TERZNFEIAERMERE -
ZH AR AL B BB R AR
1 %) 20,000,000 7T 2 = F B 2 A -

H Al 5% B

PR 5 B RS 0 o T R M N A AR AR
R H B RS 2 REAR R AR A JBE Bk A SR 4 o
B R K2 AR R e 55 TR A i 119 7 S 9 B 18 O T Bk
T HEAR B i Bl o ASE T 2 B E W) BB IR A
9 AL B WA B A (B L B > T 2% 4 B Bk A Al (A
B 5 o AR DA AR SR T o B g N DAY E AL R 2R
S #5151 % & %6 7,900,0009 IC ©

ot KRB

A E R R FJLE LA BT
[ Aquascutum] 2 55 BE R % - B ROl 52 5T #)
A TR HEFE v BT M AR R R o AR R A
A T R L B R S R LR o B R
A P T M — L B R AR B AR AR A
ZEBHMEEEE A RMEECBRTSL
AR M PR RE AL A DU R 2 T
DL 4E 45 8 T Aquascutum) b i o il 2R T 35 3
FrH AL > A KR M AE A A\ A sz R A
B A b A B AR R -

B

ANERHURENREFTTRLFERAER
fF 55 i A e B BoH - AEER SR A
9 KR A RE A o A A AR AR I Y R T
PR SR E R« SO A AR B 6 1) —
HAEH A EBMBORE - &F - EHBY
P R R 7 B DL R D

e
B 7k %2

Bk FFELATAH

2009/10 Annual Report

Review of Operations (continued)
Licensing and Royalty Income (continued)
Agquascutum International

Aquascutum International was formed at the purchase of the Asian
rights to the brand. For the period from acquisition in September
2009 to March 2010, we had collected royalties of approximately
HK$20 million from existing licensees.

Other Business

Our manufacturing plant in Dongguan, China operates with a small loss
for the year due to much higher operating costs and a static selling
price. Printing and related services reports a good profit with the recovery
of business activities in Hong Kong. We reported a steady rental income
from our investment properties and reported valuation gains compared
to valuation losses in the previous year. We had disposed of the interest
in associate and recorded a net gain on disposal of HK$7.9 million.

Prospects and Developments

After the acquisition of the Asian Rights for Aquascutum in September
2009, plans were immediately drawn up for the future expansion of this
brand in Mainland China. Having transformed ourselves from a licensee
to an international brand proprietor, our Company’s objective is to focus
on marketing the Aquascutum brand name by developing our distribution
network further in Mainland China, expanding our territorial coverage
into developed markets such as the Republic of Korea and Southeast
Asia, and continuing to improve and expand our product range to meet
our customer needs. While there are increasing competition in our
markets, we believe our company can benefit from the continuous
prosperity in Mainland China.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere appreciation to all employees who devoted
themselves to the Group during the past year. Their contributions are
unfailing and most instrumental to the success of the Group. | also take
this opportunity to extend our gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
business partners and suppliers for their steadfast support of the Group.

Chan Wing Fui, Peter

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2010
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19964 J8 3. 774 Ji 4 397 -5 8 J8 9 [ ] Lindeberg |
A 199748 %) 4 & 8 & 5 DA 2k > — E i sh #F
B IR 2 N 4 B RO S o 7 A JHORS 4% oRORG P ik
ah B TEE > 4 B AL B A K
fEE  [].Lindeberg| Bt T 1 32 2L R 51| K %8 J& 1%
FH VR T SRR W R A o AT 8 A BR A 251 [
%o AFESEE - R~ AL B AR o JEAE Al
B 1 [].Lindeberg | 77 i 18 5F 7 B ~ 44 ~ WA
B~ BRARIR AR - BLA AR KO T % 35 A R
S o fih RGBS AR L BN WARE & A
] J A BRAR E B AT R BRSO B o
H 20074F 2 > fh B 3 2 fy 38 & 2§ Proventus
B AT B 48 #K Jonas Meerits 52 [0 B i i 48 S Stefan
Engstom’e £ o

A% 45 [ B ] Lindeberg ABEE 71 8 5% 43 81 it #k 12
o g~ A5 v % IR P 85 B[] Lindeberg| £
i > B 40 &[] Lindeberg | % [ 22 B2 38 1l 1

Founded in Stockholm in 1996, J.Lindeberg has
successfully combined the concepts of fashion and
sportswear since its first collection in early 1997.
Through their progressive views in designs and
craftsmanship, quality and value is ensured in every
product. J.Lindeberg’s main collection and its
progressive golf and ski collections are sold worldwide
in more than 25 countries including the U.S.A, the
United Kingdom, Scandinavia and Japan. As an
innovative brand, J.Lindeberg flagship stores are
located in Stockholm, New York, Los Angeles,
Copenhagen, Kitzbuhel and Miami. The brand’s
apparel is also carried by leading independent
boutiques, upscale departments stores, and some of
the world’s most exclusive golf pro shops. Since 2007,
its principal owner is operated by the investment firm,
Proventus, together with CEO Jonas Meerits and
Global Brand Director Stefan Engstém.

The Group has signed an exclusive distribution and
license agreement with J.Lindeberg AB for the exclusive
rights to market and sell products bearing J.Lindeberg
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau. The
Group plans to aggressively expand its presence of
J.Lindeberg sales distributions in Mainland China.
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EE NRICAE ([ - Fis - HA - &
S ENJE - EDBE - SEAYE - Bk EE - RE -
B HmY - B L .

E L

AEBEE FE—-FF=H=1T—HILFEE
Z & ¥ b T 2% % 991,055,000k 76 (B E
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wot) o L > &4 R FF A 171,986,000
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Profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 increased by 1.5 times from
that of the previous year. This was mainly due to the implementation of
comprehensive program of cost discipline by management, and saving
in royalty expense and increase in royalty income resulted from the
acquisition of the trademark, “Aquascutum”, in September 2009.

On 8 September 2009, the Group completed the acquisition of all right,
title and interest in the intellectual property rights of “Aquascutum” in
relation to the Asian territories at a cash consideration of £13,700,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$173,716,000). Asian territories consists
of 42 countries and regions in Asia including, but not limited to, the
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”), Hong Kong, Japan, the Republic
of Korea, Indonesia, India, the Philippines, Malaysia, Thailand, Taiwan,
Singapore, Brunei and Macau.

Results of the Group’s Operations

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 increased by
2% to HK$991,055,000 from HK$971,936,000 for the previous year.
Total sales of garment, the Group’s principal business, increased slightly
to HK$881,358,000 (2009: HK$876,044,000). As a result of the
acquisition of “Aquascutum”, total royalty and related income from
external customers for the year increased to HK$76,185,000 (2009:
HK$59,533,000).

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 increased to
HK$640,557,000 (2009: HK$592,608,000). Gross profit margin improved
to 64.6% (2009: 61.0%). Total distribution expenses decreased from
HK$367,064,000 for the previous year to HK$326,875,000. In addition,
total administrative expenses decreased to HK$147,499,000 (2009:
HK$154,487,000). Hence, profit from operations surged from
HK$88,724,000 for the previous year to HK$171,936,000.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year
was HK$196,587,000 (2009: HK$80,187,000) which included an
unrealised gain on valuation of trading securities at fair value of
HK$1,353,000 as opposed to an unrealised loss of HK$2,215,000 in
the previous year and valuation gains on investment properties of
HK$20,500,000 (2009: valuation losses of HK$13,000,000). In addition,
a net gain on disposal of associate of HK$7,899,000 was recorded as
the Group disposed of its interest in associate at a consideration of
RMB11,980,000 (equivalent to HK$13,625,000) during the year.



[MICHEL RENE] 7€ 19764F- B 3L » il Jt
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[MICHEL RENE] 1 20064F % 7 # i hit
B J2 R E 85 [ 20057 s 44 M| 88 - fh
MESEREREE -

Established in 1976, MICHEL RENE carries
a full line of men’s and women’s executive and
city wear, and accessories. MICHEL RENE
always maintains its integrity and
contemporary style which enables young and
modern people to mix-and-match creatively
for all occasions.

In 2006, MICHEL RENE achieved the ‘Hong
Kong Top Brand Award 2005’ organised by
the Hong Kong Brand Development Council.
The brand image is affirmed.

MICHEL RENE
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BRER SE AT BF S AE & Al P AR T > P R A4
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Business review

Sales of garments

The global economy has showed signs of improvement since the onset
of financial tsunami and encouraging signs of recovery continued to
emerge in the second half of the year under review. Total sales of garment,
the Group’s principal business, increased by 5.6% in the second half of
the financial year as opposed to a decrease of 5.7% in the first half of
the financial year. Hence, total sales of garment for the year increased
slightly to HK$881,358,000 (2009: HK$876,044,000).

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had 163 “Aquascutum” outlets, 75
“Ashworth” outlets and 64 “Michel René” outlets in the Greater China
region and Southeast Asia. And, the Group also had 1 “Guy Laroche”
outlet in Europe.

H bk Geographical locations
ok Hong Kong

8P Macau

rh At b [ Other areas of the PRC
=R Taiwan

Rk Europe

et Southeast Asia

25t Total

H il 3 %

A% 45 18] O B AT A R A O B A ) R R
[Guy Laroche] o fifi & RN 7T 25 9% 55 > (HEZ 4
) (] B A AT Bk A5 U8 R o A R HSE 2
R SR BB T HE B S s {H R AR AR )
BRAT R o AR 2 A BRI 2 i A
R - (B EREE - TEMFHEZHS
WA R EE 2 o
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M i =2 3 b 45 fli

Breakdown of outlets by geographical locations
e e 1 Y I +/()
=H=+—H “H=+—H i
As at As at +/(-)
31 March 2010 31 March 2009 outlets
45 35 +10
8 8 -
198 215 -17
39 49 -10
1 1 -
12 13 -1
303 321 -18

Other business

The Group owns the global brand “Guy Laroche” and operates a
company in Paris as the headquarter. The French company reports a
profit for the year under review in spite of the weak market economy in
Europe. Despite efforts to contain increase in expenses, our
manufacturing plant in Dongguan suffered loss for another year. Our
security printing business reported a lower but still very healthy profit.
Rental income from the industrial building remains fairly stable.



rGuyLarochcji%%gﬂ(J%@Hﬁ%iﬁnw > DL
R R AR o 5 2 IR 2 B S K Bl Guy
Larochel 19564F Bt A1l 37 > 36 7 19614F 1 K #E H A&
KR H| o i B ER DL SE B & B AR AR5 S T
EY o B BM A KR RATENER o [Guy
Laroche | P Al 26 & 2% 70 WA ~ B R IFM - =i
B O D B A5 iR B 5 2 UK =2 &R R e

A% AR M J7 20044 Ji# A [ Guy Laroche] il i > [ Guy
Laroche | 7€ ity BE 28 + 43 25 ok > AQBE 7 78 A i

Guy Laroche

P A R | Guy Laroche is a renowned French label that has long been

recognised by its signature elegant style. Established in 1956
by Guy Laroche himself, the brand launched its first ready-to-
wear collection in 1961. The brand is well known for its form-
fitting cuttings, accentuating female bodyline appeal, and thus
it has been popular among famous actresses and celebrities.
Guy Laroche designs are for sophisticated, contemporary and
elegant ladies with an appreciation for French style.

The Group acquired Guy Laroche in 2004 and the brand
carries a full line of products. The brand has licensees for

various product categories all over the world.
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Prospects

Although the global economy shows signs of recovery, management
continue to implement strict cost discipline and seek appropriate business
opportunities. The Group will benefit from the acquisition of “Aquascutum”
in coming years in view of a saving in royalty expense and new income
streams from potential markets.

In addition, during the year, the Group had entered into an exclusive
distribution and license agreement with J.Lindeberg AB for the exclusive
rights to market and sell products bearing “J. Lindeberg” in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China. The Group is planning to open three “J.
Lindeberg” outlets in the financial year 2010/11.

Capital expenditure

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$14,070,000 in
recurring additions and replacement of fixed assets, compared to
HK$26,621,000 for the previous year.

On 8 September 2009, the Group completed the acquisition of all right,
title and interest in the intellectual property rights of “Aquascutum” in
relation to 42 countries and regions in Asia at a cash consideration of
£13,700,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$173,716,000).

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group financed its operations by internally generated cashflows
and banking facilities provided by its bankers. The Group continues to
maintain a prudent approach to managing its financial requirements.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group generated cash of
HK$227,016,000 (2009: HK$113,415,000) from operations. As at 31
March 2010, the Group had cash and bank deposits net of overdrafts
and short-term bank loans of HK$167,591,000, a decrease from
HK$224,097,000 as at 31 March 2009 after a payment of £13,700,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$173,716,000) for acquisition of all right,
title and interest in the intellectual property rights of “Aquascutum” in
relation to 42 countries and regions in Asia and payments of dividends
of HK$66,148,000 during the year. At 31 March 2010, the Group had
listed securities which were readily convertible into cash with a fair value
of HK$2,352,000 (2009: HK$4,537,000).
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Charles Jourdan is a leading French label famous
for its luxury and colorful footwear. Established
in 1921, the brand recently launched its fashion
apparel and accessories collection using the same
passion and innovation. The new line is
refreshingly modern, luxurious, versatile and is
sure to be a big hit.

The Group is the licensee of Charles Jourdan
full-line apparel and accessories for the Greater
China region and Southeast Asia.

CHARLES JOURDAN

Paris
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Liquidity and financial resources (continued)

The Group’s net assets as at 31 March 2010 were HK$944,470,000 as
compared with HK$798,247,000 as at 31 March 2009. The Group’s
gearing ratio at the year end was 0.053 (31 March 2009: 0.023) which
was calculated based on total borrowings of HK$48,510,000 (31 March
2009: HK$17,985,000) and shareholders’ equity of HK$922,413,000
(31 March 2009: HK$779,302,000). The Group’s borrowings are mainly
on a floating rate basis.

The Group also maintains a conservative approach to foreign exchange
exposure management. The Group’s income and expenditure streams
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, New Taiwan Dollars,
Japanese Yen, Pounds Sterling, Euros, Renminbi and Macau Patacas.
To manage currency risks, non Hong Kong Dollar assets are financed
primarily by matching local currency debts as far as possible.

Certain investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$10,900,000 as at 31 March 2009 were pledged to banks for
obtaining banking facilities of which none was utilised as at 31 March
2009. No fixed assets were pledged to banks as at 31 March 2010.

As at 31 March 2010, the Company issued guarantees to banks to
secure banking facilities of subsidiaries amounting to HK$181,084,000
(2009: HK$96,966,000). The maximum liability of the Company at the
balance sheet date under the guarantees issued is the amount of banking
facilities drawn down by the relevant subsidiaries amounting to
HK$55,353,000 (2009: HK$22,633,000).

Share option scheme

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22 September
2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to eligible participants including directors and
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject
to a maximum of 15,469,879 new shares.

During the year, no share options were granted to directors and
employees of the Group and no options were exercised.
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Human resources

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had approximately 2,000 employees.
The Group offers competitive remuneration packages including medical
subsidies and retirement scheme contributions to its employees in
compensation for their contribution. In addition, discretionary bonuses
and share options may also be granted to the eligible employees based
on the Group’s and individuals’ performances.

Dividends

After due consideration of cash on hand, future investment requirements
and the economic outlook, the Board had resolved to recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK 40.0 cents (2009: HK 28.0 cents) per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2010 at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 10 September 2010. The final
dividend totaling HK$61,533,000 (2009: HK$43,073,000), if approved
by the shareholders, is expected to be paid on or around 14 September
2010 to those shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at the close of business on 3 September
2010.
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Pursuant to Appendix 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of YGM Trading
Limited (the “Company”) presents this Corporate Governance Report
for the year under review.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board firmly believes that corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and has adopted various measures to ensure
its strict compliance with relevant regulatory requirements, a high level
of transparency in corporate governance and an excellent performance
in operation.

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31 March 2010
with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, except that the non-executive directors of the Company were
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding director’s
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and its Securities Dealing Code throughout the year
under review.

Board of Directors

The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation of strategic
plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of investment
projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating and financial
performance, and assessing and managing risk to which the Group is
exposed.

The Board currently comprises seven Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Directors during the year
ended 31 March 2010 and up to the date of this Annual Report were :
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Board of Directors (continued)

Executive Directors

Chan Sui Kau

(re-designated as Honorary Chairman on 6 May 2010)
Chan Wing Fui, Peter

(re-designated as Chairman on 6 May 2010)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel

(re-designated as Vice Chairman on 6 May 2010)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

(re-designated as Chief Executive Officer on 6 May 2010)
Fu Sing Yam, William

(re-designated as Managing Director on 6 May 2010)
Chan Wing Kee
Chan Wing To

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Hok Lim

Lin Keping

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael (appointed on 26 March 2010)
Wong Lam (resigned on 6 May 2010)

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of Independent Non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board held four meetings during the year. The attendance record of

individual Directors is as below:

Ww /BT RKY

g Directors Meetings attended / held
B ity BR Chan Sui Kau 4/4
B 7k 42 Chan Wing Fui, Peter 4/4
B 7k 2% Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 4/4
JE B S Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 4/4
K & Fu Sing Yam, William 4/4
B 7Kk H5 Chan Wing Kee 4/4
Bk 7k Vi Chan Wing To 4/4
o 2 Yk Leung Hok Lim 4/4
N Lin Keping 4/4
Jit 4 # (f =% —&4E Sze Cho Cheung, Michael 1/1
=H -+ /NHB#EEML) (appointed on 26 March 2010)
EaR A & — &4 Wong Lam 4/4
HH 7S H BET) (resigned on 6 May 2010)

2009/10 % #_
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and overall business development planning. The Chief
Executive Officer’s duty is to oversee the execution of daily business
activities. The division of responsibilities at the board level is to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
Current members of the Audit Committee are three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping and Mr.

o BBEZEGHREE _F-FHE = =1 Sze Cho Cheung, Michael. Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the chairman of the
—HIEFERY A MK Eg®R > BETEEE  Audit Committee. The Audit Committee held two meetings during the
2R/ N year ended 31 March 2010. The attendance record is set out below :
W /847 &R B
o Directors Meetings attended / held
ok L Leung Hok Lim 2/2
T Lin Keping 2/2
it 41+ O —=%F — &4 Sze Cho Cheung, Michael N/A
=“HZ= 1+ H¥Z) (appointed on 26 March 2010)
F AR O =& —FA4F Wong Lam 2/2
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(resigned on 6 May 2010)

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions
and considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.

The Group’s audited financial statements, internal control system and
connected transactions for the year ended 31 March 2010 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The current members of the Remuneration Committee consists of two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr.
Lin Keping and Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael. The Company had
formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and in
overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors. It would also take into account whether the emoluments offered
are appropriate given the duties and performance of the respective
individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are competitive
and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2010. The attendance record is set out below :

R/ BT RR Y

g Directors Meetings attended / held
Bk 45 Chan Wing Fui, Peter 1/1
B ik £ Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 1/1
ok B i Leung Hok Lim 1/1
T Lin Keping 1/1
B AL R (i =& —F 4 Sze Cho Cheung, Michael N/A
“HZ T /NH¥EZEIE) (appointed on 26 March 2010)
EFE R F—-FE Wong Lam 1/1
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(resigned on 6 May 2010)

Nomination Committee

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. To maintain
high quality of the Board with a balance of skills and experience, the
Board will identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors when
necessary. In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to act as a
director, the Board will consider the experience, qualification and other
relevant factors. During the year, Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael was
appointed as the Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 26 March 2010. Subsequently, Mr. Wong Lam resigned
as the Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 6 May 2010.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period with a view to ensuring such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are
responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

The Directors are also responsible for reviewing the adequacy of staffing
of the financial reporting functions.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s auditors, are set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 37 and 38 of this
Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to the statutory audit of the Group
amounted to HK$3,873,000 (2009 : HK$3,533,000) of which a sum of
HK$2,977,000 (2009 : HK$2,437,000) was paid or payable to the
Group’s principal auditor, KPMG.

The remuneration paid to the Group’s principal auditor, KPMG, and its
affiliated firms, for services rendered is as follows :

%08 Statutory audit
IE ] 4% M Non-audit services
R Total

2009/10 Annual Report

2010 2009
%o # 0

HK$ HK$
2,977,000 2,437,000
409,000 326,000
3,386,000 2,763,000
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate and
sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee and an
external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal audit services
(“Internal Auditors”), conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these
systems at least annually, covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management functions.
The process used in reviewing the effectiveness of these internal control
systems includes discussion with management on risk areas identified
by management. The purpose of the Company’s internal control is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems so that the Company’s objectives can be achieved.

Internal Audit Function

Although there was no in-house internal audit set up during the year, the
Company engaged the Internal Auditors to review specific areas of
concern identified by management and the Audit Committee. The Internal
Auditors performed a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 so as to furnish
some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee and the Board on the
reliability and integrity of the system and control process. The results of
the internal control review were submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the results of the
internal control review and is satisfied that the existing system of internal
controls is effective and adequate.
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2009/10 Annual Report

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report together
with the audited financial statements of YGM Trading Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries and associates (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 22 Tai
Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
the financial statements on pages 125 to 128.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 11
to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 39 to 128.

An interim dividend of HK15 cents (2009: HK10 cents) per ordinary share
was paid on 15 January 2010. The Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK40 cents (2009: HK28 cents) per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2010.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 27(c) to the
financial statements.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31 March 2010 of HK$196,587,000 (2009:
HK$80,187,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note
12 to the financial statements.
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Properties

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group
are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and the
Group as at 31 March 2010 are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$296,000 (2009: HK$1,143,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s sales to its five largest customers and
purchases from its five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the Group’s turnover and purchases respectively.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Chan Sui Kau

(re-designated as Honorary Chairman on 6 May 2010)
Chan Wing Fui, Peter

(re-designated as Chairman on 6 May 2010)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel

(re-designated as Vice Chairman on 6 May 2010)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

(re-designated as Chief Executive Officer on 6 May 2010)
Fu Sing Yam, William

(re-designated as Managing Director on 6 May 2010)
Chan Wing Kee
Chan Wing To

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Hok Lim

Lin Keping

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael (appointed on 26 March 2010)
Wong Lam (resigned on 6 May 2010)

2009/10 % # |
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Directors (continued)

Pursuant to Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Mr. Fu Sing Yam, William and Mr. Lin Keping will
retire from the Board by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Sze Cho Cheung,
Michael who was appointed as a Director by the Board after the last
annual general meeting held on 11 September 2009 will also retire and,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors a confirmation of their respective independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Company considers the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed by the board
of Directors and their remuneration is determined by the board of
Directors, see section headed ‘Compliance with the Code of Best
Practice’.

None of the Directors who has offered himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as set out in note 31 to the financial statements, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers and which were required to be entered in the register
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO were as follows:
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Directors’ Interests in Shares (continued)

() Interests in issued shares
45 JBt i 4 0.50%% JC 1 35 A Bt ¥ H
Number of Ordinary Shares of HK$0.50 each

il A i 2 O 05 B A 2 i) HE 4 I b HE 22
Personal Family Corporate Other
interests® interests interests interests
4,929,272 214,368 3,840,820 (ii)
324,068 10,082,420 — (i) & (ii)
6,250,072 250,000 7,541,144 (i & (i)
6,202,544 16,000 — (i) & (ii)
900,462 — — (ii)
8,546,776 819,404 — (i), (iii) & (iv)
8,998,736 — — (i), (iii) & (iv)

(i)  The shares are registered under the names of the Directors
who are the beneficial owners.

(i) 29,601,700 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Limited (which is owned by Messrs
Chan Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel, Chan Wing To and Fu Sing Yam, William,
Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and other members of the
Chan family) and its subsidiaries.

(i) 2,920,388 shares of the Company were held by Hearty
Development Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs
Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun,
Samuel and Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
and other members of the Chan family.

(iv) 1,597,000 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan
Wing Kee and Chan Wing To and other members of the Chan
family.

(Il) Interests in underlying shares

The Directors of the Company have been granted options under
the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out
in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

2009/10 % #_
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Directors’ Interests in Shares (continued)

(Il) Interests in underlying shares (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the Directors
or their associates, had, under Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are
required to be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or any interests which are required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
in the Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 23
September 2004 whereby the Directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company. The purpose of the scheme is to provide an opportunity
for employees of the Group to acquire an equity participation in the
Company and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The share option scheme is valid and effective
for a period of 10 years ending on 22 September 2014, after which no
further options will be granted.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the
shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

The options vest 30 days from the date of grant and are then exercisable
within a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The total number of shares available for issue under the share option
scheme as at 31 March 2010 was 15,469,879 shares (including options
for 11,627,000 shares that have been granted but have not yet lapsed
or been exercised) which represented 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2004. In respect of the maximum
entitlement of each participant under the scheme, the number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

At 31 March 2010, the Directors and employees of the Company had
the following interests in the options to subscribe for shares in the
Company (market value per share at 31 March 2010 was HK$7.55)
granted for a nominal charge on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option under the Share Option Scheme of the Company. The options
are unlisted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$0.50 each of the Company.

8 W £33 Ji OBt i 52
W A AT B KB W RAT Jik e B T B TEHB
WRHERE WREYEE WREEE  BTHN MM TEM R
No. of Market
options No. of No. of value
outstanding options options Period per share
at the lapsed outstanding during which  Exercise at date of
beginning during at the Date options are price grant
of the year the year year end granted exercisable per share of options
(#7) (#x)*
(HKS) (HKS)*
Y Directors
B 3 BK Chan Sui Kau 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/2/2015
Bk Z & Chan Wing Fui, Peter 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
HEM  and his spouse to 15/2/2015
B 7k 4% Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 156/2/2015
JA B % Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/2/2015
7K & Fu Sing Yam, William 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 156/2/2015
[/ Chan Wing Kee 800,000 - 800,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/2/2015
B K Chan Wing To 500,000 - 500,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 156/2/2015
B Leung Hok Lim 100,000 - 100,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/2/2015
% Wong Lam 25,000 - 25,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 156/2/2015
M F LinKeping 25,000 - 25,000  17/1/2005 16/2/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/2/2015
7,850,000 - 7,850,000
g Employees 3,817,000 40,000 3,777,000 17/1/2005 16/2/2005
to 15/2/2015
Bt Total 11,667,000 40,000 11,627,000
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names of
the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

*

being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary
shares immediately before the dates on which the options were
granted.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the
weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(q)(i) and note
25 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholder’s Interest

As at 31 March 2010, the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that, other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of the directors, no other interests required
to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have
been notified to the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person
who was, directly or indirectly, interested or had a short position in the
shares or underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of the issued share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meeting of the Company or any
options in respect of such capital as at 31 March 2010.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2010.
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Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are set out in note 31(a) to the financial statements. In the opinion
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, these transactions were
entered into by the Group:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of its business;

(i) conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression
will be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature and
to be made by similar entities) or, where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the
independent shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where
applicable.

The auditors of the Company also confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions set out in note 31(a) to the financial statements:

(1) had been approved by the Board;
(2) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(8) had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreements relating to these transactions; and

(4) The aggregate consideration received or paid in respect of the
continuing connected transactions during the year ended 31 March
2010 had not exceeded the cap disclosed in the respective
announcement and/or circular.

There are no other connected transactions which are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Particular of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in
note 24 to the financial statements.
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Compliance with the Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code of Best
Practice as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except that the
non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to rotation in annual general meetings pursuant to
Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of association.

Audit Committee

To comply with the revised Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, the Company set up an audit committee (the
“Committee”) with written terms of reference, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision on the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 129 of the Annual
Report.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the date of
this annual report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
Chan Wing Fui, Peter

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2010
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Directors

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, JP

Aged 85, Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman
of the Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and the Honorary Chairman of the
Company. Having been a Justices of the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan
was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2002 and 6 years later in 2008
he was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as
a member of the 8th & 9th term of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Committee until he reached the retirement age. Dr. Chan is
also an Honorary Citizen of Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi
(Jiangsu).

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001; an
Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from City University of
Hong Kong in 2007 and in the same year an Honorary University
Fellowship from The University of Hong Kong. Then in 2008 Dr. Chan
received another two honorary university conferments; one was an
Honorary University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University and
the other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from
The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training Authority
(1986); former Chairman of the Textile Council of Hong Kong (1988-
1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President of
Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and
currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong
Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and
former member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as
well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory (1985-1995).

Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 64, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science
from Yale University USA in 1969 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment
Limited in the same year. He was appointed as the Director and Managing
Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1971 and 1980 respectively
and Vice Chairman of the board of directors of both the Company and
Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1987. He was appointed as Chairman
of the board of director of the Company in May 2010. Mr. Chan has
been actively involved in garment manufacturing and marketing in the
Far East and the USA for over 30 years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui
Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk
Ling, Shirley.
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Directors (continued)

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FCA

Aged 62, received a Bachelor’s degree from the University of Manchester,
the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered Accountant in
1973. He was the Company Secretary of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
from 1974 to 1988 and has been a director of Yangtzekiang Garment
Limited since 1977. He was the Managing Director of the Company
from 1987 to 2006 and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company from
2006 to 2010. He was appointed as Vice Chairman of the board of
director of the Company in May 2010. He was appointed as chairman
of Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited in 2003 and has also been acted
as the chief executive officer since March 2010. He is the son of Dr.
Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, and Madam
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

Madam Chan was appointed as the Chief Executive Office of the
Company in May 2010. She joined Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in
1973 and was appointed Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in
1983. Madam Chan was the Deputy Managing Director of the Company
from 1987. She was the Managing Director of the YGM Trading Group
from 2006 to 2010. She has extensive experience of management in
the garment retail and wholesale business. Madam Chan is a Member
of the Textiles Advisory Board of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, a Member of the Hong Kong-France Business Partnership
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, Vice President
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, Chairman of
the Hong Kong Brand Development Council, a Member of the
DesignSmart Initiative Assessment Panel, a Member of the Board of
Directors of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Member of the Board of
Directors of Ocean Park Corporation, a Committee Member of the Tianjin
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Vice President of the Guangdong Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment and a Member of The Council of City University
of Hong Kong. She received a Bachelor’s degree from Nottingham Trent
University, the United Kingdom in 1973. Madam Chan, aged 59, is the
daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter
and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel.

Fu Sing Yam, William

Age 48, received a Bachelor’s degree from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada in 1984. He joined the Company in 1985 and was
appointed as the Director in 1995 and the Deputy Managing Director of
the Company in 2006. He was appointed as the Managing Director of
the Company in May 2010. He has extensive experience in fashion
retailing, wholesaling, marketing and merchandising. Mr. Fu is a
Committee Member of the Heilongjiang Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
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Directors (continued)

Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 63, received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering in 1970
and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1970 as Production Manager
and later became Sales Manager. Mr. Chan was appointed Director in
1977 and Managing Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1987.
He is a Director of the Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited and
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited. Mr. Chan was the
independent non-executive director of Times Limited from June 2007
to January 2010. Mr. Chan has participated in many textile negotiations
with the USA and Europe for Hong Kong and Macau. He is a Standing
Committee Member of The 10th and 11th of The Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference; Deputy of the 8th and 9th National
People’s Congress of China, Member of Commission on Strategic
Development of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region; Ex-member
of Economic Council of Macau Special Administrative Region; Ex-
member of the Textile Advisory Board; Ex-Committee Member of the
Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing To.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 59, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed
as Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in 1983 and the Company
in 1987. He is the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Kee.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA (Aust.), CPA (Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 75, Mr. Leung was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1993. He is the founder and senior partner
of PKF, Accountants & Business Advisers. Mr. Leung is an independent
non-executive director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited, a non-executive
director of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited
and the independent non-executive director of a number of listed
companies.

Lin Keping

Aged 71, Mr. Lin was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated from
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He is a
Member of the 8th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and an executive member of the 8th All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in postal and
telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications, and other organizations for years and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp Limited. He is
an independent non-executive director of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited.

2009/10 % #_
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Directors (continued)

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael, GBS, CBE, ISO, JP

Aged 65, Mr. Sze was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2010. He was a former executive
director of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a position he
held for eight years prior to his retirement on 1 May 2004. Before that,
he worked for 25 years in various capacities in Hong Kong Government.
He is also an Independent Non-executive Directors of Swire Pacific
Limited and Yangtzekiang Garment Limited. Mr. Sze resigned as a non-
executive director of Lee Kum Kee Company, Limited in June 2010 and
currently acts as a consultant to the board of Lee Kum Kee Company,
Limited.

Senior Executives

Kenneth Hung

Aged 43, Mr. Hung joined the Group in 1992. Director of Michel René
Enterprises Limited. Mr. Hung graduated from the University of Minnesota
in the USA and has extensive experience in the apparel retailing industry.

Cheng Sai Man, Simon

Aged 61, Mr. Cheng received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment
Limited in the same year. Mr. Cheng has been the General Manager of
YGM Clothing Limited since 1988. He has extensive manufacturing and
commercial experience in China.

Andrew Chan

Aged 32, Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2002. He is the Executive Director
and General Manager of Aquascutum International Limited and Director
of YGM Marketing Limited. Mr. Chan attended Skidmore College in New
York majoring in Marketing and received a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from the University of Hartford in Connecticut. He has
extensive experience in the fashion retailing industry in the Greater China
region and Southeast Asian markets. He is currently responsible for overall
management and strategic development for Charles Jourdan, Guy
Laroche and Michel René. In addition, Mr. Chan assists the Managing
Director in the corporate development of the Group. He is the grandson
of Dr. Chan Sui Kau, the son of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, the nephew of
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Cheung Kwok Sum, Sam
Aged 49, Mr. Cheung received a Bachelor’s degree from University of

Hong Kong in 1983 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Limited in the
same year. Mr. Cheung is the EDP Manager of the Group.
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Senior Executives (continued)

Leung Wing Fat, FCCA, FCPA

Aged 50, Mr. Leung joined the Group as Financial Controller in 1996
and appointed as Company Secretary of the Company in 1998. Mr.
Leung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is responsible for accounting and company
secretarial matters.

Ngai Kwai Yung, FCPA(Aust.), CPA, MBA

Aged 52, Mr Ngai was appointed as the Managing Director of Hong
Kong Security Printing Limited in 1998. Holds a Bachelor’s degree of
Commerce and a Master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. Ngai
is a fellow member of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
YGM Trading Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of YGM Trading
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 39 to 128 which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2010,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 July 2010
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Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net (loss)/income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Profit from operations

Valuation gains/(losses) on investment
properties

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of associates

Net gain on disposal of associate

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to: 4 N

Fi =
Note

3&11

16(b)

6(a)

2010 2009
$°000 $°000
991,055 971,936
(350,498) (379,328)
640,557 592,608
10,763 11,496
(4,428) 8,531
(326,875) (367,064)
(147,499) (154,487)
(582) (2,360)
171,936 88,724
20,500 (13,000)
(910) (1,712
29,478 17,072
7,899 -
228,903 91,084
(30,531) (11,616)
198,372 79,468

i

i
&
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2010 2009
$°000 $'000
AR AF ¥ Bt Profit for the year 79,468
7 AR 5 B fib 2 i W 2 Other comprehensive income for the year
i 55 A1 B g 2 F Exchange differences on translation of
T B R R T E AR financial statements of subsidiaries
1 T 58, 26 FH based outside Hong Kong (9,360)
JEAG Bt 4% s W AMEE % #5 Share of exchange reserve of associates (21,143)
(80,508)
7% AR B 4 T WG A A g Total comprehensive income for the year 48,965
B Attributable to:
AN T RE 25 R Equity shareholders of the Company 51,496
b B R 2 Minority interests (2,531)
AR AR BE 4 Thi W 2% A8 % Total comprehensive income for the year 48,965

FE o AR R LAE G M B A A H 54 Note: There is no tax expense or benefit in relation to the other
B Y B T S B 4 e comprehensive income in either the current or the prior year.

FEA7TH ¥ 128 H 2 Mt A K IR K2 — a1 o The notes on pages 47 to 128 form part of these financial statements.

— 50
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Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Other property, plant
and equipment

— Interest in leasehold land
held for own use under
operating lease

Intangible assets
Lease premium
Interests in associates
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Trading securities
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank loans and overdrafts
Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less
current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

R 5
Note

12(a)

13
14
16
17
26(b)

18
19
20
26(a)
21

22
23
26(a)

23
26(b)

$°000

2,352
102,007
125,442

537
214,550

444,888

168,488
46,959
18,134

233,581

1,551
14,234

2010

$°000

63,400

122,042

5,384

190,826

287,238
9,928
139,592
69,781

51,583

748,948

211,307

960,255

15,785

944,470

2009

$°000 $'000

53,300

122,542

5,633

181,375

107,709

9,727

109,962

34,642

55,679

499,094
4,637
140,353
106,874
2,091
238,615
492,470
155,221
14,518
8,930
178,669

313,801

812,895
3,467
11,181

14,648

798,247



BEAS Be fifi M CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Jig A Share capital 27(c)
fith #5 Reserves
A% 2w B Total equity attributable
M 4 B A A A to shareholders of
the Company
2 B B B 2 Minority interests
HE 25 48 TOTAL EQUITY

76,916
702,386

779,302
18,945

798,247

FEHREGN EF-FFE LA FNHEMELFFRT  Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 July

B o 2010.
Bk & % ) Chan Wing Fui, Peter )

) )

) HEH ) Directors
B K % ) Chan Wing Sun, Samuel )

) )

EATH F 128 H 2 Wit it A M RFEZ —# O - The notes on pages 47 to 128 form part of these financial statements.

— 2



gEHE &

Balance Sheet

W —F4FE = H =+— H At 31 March 2010
(LA 3 oz 9 7~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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R 5
Note
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 12(b)
Investments in subsidiaries 15
Interest in associates 16
Other financial assets 17
Current assets
Trading securities 18
Trade and other receivables 20
Current tax recoverable 26(a)
Cash and cash equivalents 21
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22
Current tax payable 26(a)
Net current assets
Total assets less current
liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 26(b)
NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27(a)

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

EHRER E-FELH N B A EE

o

Bl K 4

)

)

) #
Bk % )
)

FATH EF128H Z Wit JG A MK Z — ity -

2009/10 Annual Report

2010

$°000 $°000

607

632,683

12,595

33,681

679,566
2,352
2,025
56,313
60,690
11,482
342
11,824

48,866

728,432

74

728,358

76,916

651,442

728,358

2009

$°000 $'000

301

466,476

17,315

33,681

517,773
993
1,090
308
132,691
135,082
7,238
7,238

127,844

645,617

14

645,603

76,916

568,687

645,603

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 July

2010.

Chan Wing Fui, Peter

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel

)
)
) Directors
)
)

The notes on pages 47 to 128 form part of these financial statements.



REBENENA—H Balance at 1 Aprl 2008

s :
L1 53
BALARRERL

BEEEEHERE
FEEEERRE

Eff O HRRRE
ZRA
FERRENELE

R-FRLE
ZREF-0R
Mi-H

fia%n:

L1V

BREECHERR

KEERERRE

FERRIRELE

A7 H FAHE128 H Z M il i A B R K Z — A e

Changes in equity:

Lapse of share options

Lapse of associate’s
share options

Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year

Dividends declared in respect
of the current year

Dividends paid to minority
interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at
31 March 2009
and 1 April 2009

Changes in equity:

Lapse of share options

Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year

Dividends declared in respect
of the current year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 31 March 2010

2100

2700

271

(]

96 1B A5 0B 21708 05 SE BREH 26l 80T
- - - %) - - 23 - - -
- - - - - %] 0% - - -
- - - - - X 1) - (T
- - - - - S5 (1589 - (5%
- - - - - - - - (1%) (1%)
- - - S ey S S PR 8%
96 1B 4s5 0400 (Y SsBM0 TR 1895 TR
- - - m - - n - - -
- - - - - N I 1) TR
- - - - - S B B ]
- - - N i S Y A1 B NV R TV
O 1B A5 W 56 S EOM WMs 2067 9N

The notes on pages 47 to 128 form part of these financial statements.
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GgabllEsmEx
Consolidated Cashflow Statement

B E—FF = H =1 — H It F & For the year ended 31 March 2010
(LA 3 oz 9 7~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bt 5 2010 2009
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
i U] Operating activities
MG ELEZ B A& Cash generated from
operations 21(b) = 227,016 113,415
BBl Tax paid
O AT 7 i Il 75 B Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (5,842) (8,108)
AT & s DL AM b & Tax paid outside
Z i 16 Hong Kong (5,829) (3,508)
RBWBEEZRE Net cash generated from
S ] operating activities 215,345 101,799
B B Investing activities
WA [ 2 B TR Payment for the purchase of
fixed assets (14,070) (26,621)
B R T AR Proceeds from disposal of
IR fixed assets 515 31
B I A W T AR Net proceeds from disposal
A of interest in associate 12,619 -
I AT AT 3K Payment for the purchase
of intangible assets (180,309) -
WAEEER®RZ Payment for the purchase of
7 5 A5 trading securities - (30,371)
HEEERER®RZ Proceeds from disposal of
75 J5 0T 15 2K E trading securities 3,697 34,230
B H = Loan to a third party (35,100) -
B W s A | kR Dividends received from
associate 8,046 14,117
T i 81 17 B Bank interest received 398 2,330
B i B N w1 RS, Interest received from associate 1,907 1,911
£ i H At R B Other interest received 659 -
B bR A R A Dividends received from
listed securities 17 25
BREFHHAZIEE Net cash used in investing
i % activities (201,621) (4,348)

2009/10 Annual Report
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EATH F 128 H 2 Wit it A M RFEZ —# O -

Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank
loans

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Dividends paid to equity
shareholders of the
Company

Dividends paid to minority
interests

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 April

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 March

(15,856)
(1,712)

(110,759)

(136)

The notes on pages 47 to 128 form part of these financial statements.

(128,463)

(31,012)

256,544

466

225,998

— 6
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1

Significant accounting policies

(@)

(®)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on the changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2010 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as set out in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(©)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 33.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Minority interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between minority interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(©)

(d)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the
Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment
to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports
profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until
the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the Group
has been recovered.

In the Company'’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method
and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see notes 1(e) and 1(k)). The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investee’s other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e

(0]

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group'’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(K)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note
1(k)). In respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate and the investment as a whole is tested for
impairment whenever there is objective evidence of impairment
(see note 1(K)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of a business combination or an investment in
an associate is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

0]

(]

Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair value can
be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in consolidated income statement. The
net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated income
statement does not include any dividends or interest earned
on these investments as these are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out in note 1(t)(iv) and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g

)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 1(t)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(j)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 1().

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(k)):

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the land
and buildings cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the building is not clearly held
under an operating lease (see note 1()));

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the building could be
measured separately from the fair value of the leasehold
land at the inception of the lease (see note 1(j)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.
Where land and buildings are transferred from investment

properties, “cost” represents the fair value at the date of
change in use of the properties.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the Group has relied
upon the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16,
Property, plant and equipment issued by the HKICPA, with
the effect that fair value of investment property transferred to
land and buildings in prior years has been treated as the
deemed cost of those land and buildings at the date of transfer.
Such previously revalued land and buildings have not been
revalued to fair value at the balance sheet date and are stated
at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses and will not be revalued in future years.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated over the remaining term
of the lease.

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

—  Plant and machinery 10 years

—  Leasehold improvements, motor vehicles, furniture and
equipment 2 to 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i

(i

(i)

Trademarks

Trademarks acquired by the Group with an indefinite
estimated useful economic life are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note 1(k)). Expenditure on internally generated brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Licences

Licences acquired by the Group with a finite estimated
useful economic life are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 1(K)).

Amortisation of licences is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period to which the licence
relates.

Lease premiums

Lease premiums paid by the Group with an indefinite
estimated useful economic life are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note 1(k)).

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the
useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed
annually to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment
for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with
finite lives as set out above.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

0

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

()  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Leased assets (continued)

(i

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included in fixed
assets. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset. Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 1(K).

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(g)).

(k) Impairment of assets

(0

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries: see note 1(c)) and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following loss events:
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates recognised using the
equity method (see note 1(d)), the impairment loss
is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment as a whole with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 1(k). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 1(k).
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For unquoted equity securities and current
receivables that are carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

— If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

- intangible assets;
— investments in subsidiaries; and

- goodwill.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

¢

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 1(k)()) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the FIFO formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

(m)

()

(0)

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(k)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

(@)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

()  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

(i) Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@

®

Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

(i)~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses.

2009/10 % # |
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

™

s

Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise
and settle simultaneously.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

()  Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

(i

(i

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with note 1(s)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value, provided
the fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation where appropriate, and
the amount that would be determined in accordance with
note 1(s)(iii). Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are
disclosed in accordance with note 1(s)(iii).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

®

(continued)

(i~ Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue arising from the sale of garments and printing
products is recognised when goods are delivered to the
customer which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

2009/10 % #_
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i

(i)

(V)

(vi)

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreements.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

— Interest income from dated debt securities intended
to be held to maturity is recognised as it accrues,
as adjusted by the amortisation of the premium or
discount on acquisition, so as to achieve a constant
rate of return over the period from the date of
purchase to the date of maturity.

— Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Decoration fee income

Decoration fee income is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w

Translation of foreign currencies

(i

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a
foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at
the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

2009/10 % # |
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditures for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use
or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly, through one
or more intermediaries to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member
of such an individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(W) Related parties (continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

2 Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

—  HKFRS 8, Operating segments

- HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial statements

- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures —improving disclosures about financial instruments

—  Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

—  Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial
statements — cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly
controlled entity or associate

- HKAS 28 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs

- Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment — vesting
conditions and cancellations
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 23 and HKFRS 2 have had no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the amendments
and interpretations were consistent with policies already adopted
by the Group. The impact of the remainder of these developments
is as follows:

— HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the
way that the Group’s chief operating decision maker regards
and manages the Group, with the amounts reported for each
reportable segment being the measures reported to the
Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and making decisions about
operating matters. This contrasts with the presentation of
segment information in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements into
segments based on related products and services and on
geographical areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not resulted
in the presentation of segment information in a manner that is
more consistent with internal reporting provided to the Group’s
most senior executive management, and has not resulted in
additional reportable segments being identified and presented
(see note 11). Corresponding amounts have been provided
on a basis consistent with the revised segment information.

—  As aresult of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), details
of changes in equity during the period arising from transactions
with equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been
presented separately from all other income and expenses in a
revised consolidated statement of changes in equity. All other
items of income and expense are presented in the consolidated
income statement, if they are recognised as part of profit or
loss for the period, or otherwise in a new primary statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Corresponding amounts have been adjusted to conform to
the new presentation. This change in presentation has no effect
on reported profit or loss, total income and expense or net
assets for any period presented.

—  As aresult of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 7,
the financial statements include expanded disclosures in note
28(f) about the fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
instruments, categorising these fair value measurements into
a three-level fair value hierarchy according to the extent to
which they are based on observable market data. The Group
has taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out in
the amendments to HKFRS 7, under which comparative
information for the newly required disclosures about the fair
value measurements of financial instruments has not been
provided.
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2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The “Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)” comprises a number
of minor and non-urgent amendments to a range of HKFRSs
which the HKICPA has issued as an omnibus batch of
amendments. Of these, the following amendment has resulted
in changes to the Group’s accounting policies:

—  As aresult of amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
associates, impairment losses recognised in respect of
the associates carried under the equity method are no
longer allocated to the goodwill inherent in that carrying
value. As a result, where there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount, the impairment loss will be reversed.
Previously, the Group allocated impairment losses to
goodwill and, in accordance with the accounting policy
for goodwill, did not consider the loss to be reversible. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in the
amendment, this new policy will be applied prospectively
to any impairment losses that arise in the current or future
periods and previous periods have not been restated.

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the requirement
that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits should be
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment in the investee, rather than as income. As a result,
as from 1 January 2009, all dividends receivable from
subsidiaries and associates, whether out of pre— or post-
acquisition profits, will be recognised in the Company’s profit
or loss and the carrying amount of the investment in the
investee will not be reduced unless that carrying amount is
assessed to be impaired as a result of the investee declaring
the dividend. In such cases, in addition to recognising dividend
income in profit or loss, the Company would recognise an
impairment loss. In accordance with the transitional provisions
in the amendment, this new policy will be applied prospectively
to any dividends receivable in the current or future periods
and previous periods have not been restated.

2009/10 % # |
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Turnover

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
the provision of management services. The principal activities of
the subsidiaries and associates are set out on pages 125 to 128 to
the financial statements.

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, royalty income, rental income and income from printing
and related services. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

2010 2009

$°000 $°000

B A 8 Sales of garments 881,358 876,044
BRI RE 2 S A B A A Rovyalty and related income 76,185 59,533
B0l e A5 B R 5 Wi 45 Income from printing and related services 32,154 34,675
BEY M & WA B Gross rentals from investment properties 1,358 1,684
991,055 971,936

AEEZHEF oL i > I MR %
J5 095 5 AR AR AR B S o o

A B A 42 ) B SR A A R R B
M EHA1E -

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no individual customer
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
turnover.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed
in note 11 to these financial statements.

Hfb A B O ) W 3% 3 Other revenue and net (loss)/income
2010 2009
$’000 $°000
2 il e A Other revenue
AT F Bl A Bank interest income 398 2,330
T 4% 2 A A i A Interest income from associate 1,907 1,911
oAt B e A Other interest income 659 -
R B A Total interest income 2,964 4,241
H U A Decoration fee income 3,645 3,141
1& v & Alteration charges 269 256
JRGE Wi B A K Claims receivable 1,039 1,171
L2 B E A Dividend income from listed securities 17 25
HAth Others 2,829 2,662
10,763 11,496

2009/10 Annual Report
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4 Other revenue and net (loss)/income (continued)

Other net (loss)/income

Net exchange (loss)/gain 11,863
Net loss on disposal of

fixed assets (1,070)
Net realised gain/(loss)

on disposal of trading

securities (689)
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on

trading securities (2,219)
Others 642

8,531

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@  Finance costs

Interest on bank advances and
other borrowings wholly

repayable within five years 1,712
(o)  Staff costs*
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 12,608
Salaries, wages and other benefits 195,763
208,371
(c) Other items
Auditor’s remuneration
— audit services
- KPMG 2,437
— other auditors 1,096
— tax services 326

3,859
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5 Profit before taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) :

(continued)

2010 2009
$°000 $'000
© HibEE () (©)  Other items (continued)
BEMEER Operating lease charges*
— S 4 - hire of equipment 1,479 1,602
—W¥EM S (445 26,255,0007C — property rentals (including contingent
(ZEZ LA : 28,919,0007C) rental payments of $26,255,000
AR 4 A R0 (2009: $28,919,000)) 174,323 178,887
175,802 180,489
MW 6 e R 8 (B k55 133H) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13) 780 780
R X DE ¥ii Depreciation and amortisation of
(Bff 5225 12(0)H) * fixed assets (note 12(a))* 24,196 32,106
JRE iz B 3 K H: b R Wik 2 Impairment loss on trade and other
U (s 15 (B 5 58 20(0) ) receivables (note 20(b)) 3,607 2,833
R i R B L A IR i 3k 2 kA Reversal of impairment loss on trade and
I 15 ] (B 5E 56 20(0)H) other receivables (note 20(b)) (3,310) -
JRE £ B 45 % ] B JE Share of associates’ taxation 8,313 4,765
BB 3 M i R 0 % Rentals receivable from investment
% 12,912,0007C properties less direct outgoings of
(ZZZFJLF 1 2,640,0000C) $2,912,000 (2009: $2,640,000) (1,358) (1,683)
T 8 WA (B 3T 55 19(0) ) Cost of inventories* (note 19(b)) 350,498 379,328
* B A 45 B 8 A~ TR R s * Cost of inventories includes $36,526,000 (2009: $45,459,000) relating to staff

L EE % 4 B 2 36,526,00000 (& & JLAE ¢
45,459,0007C) ° 17 B WA IR © Re A b 3R sl B
55 (o) 4 I B s 2 B A SRR -

costs, depreciation expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is
also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in
note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

6 &% 4 R 4R AR P A 2 B 1 Bl 6

Income tax in the consolidated income
statement

(a) ARG HHARIIINZHIHZ :

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

2010 2009
$°000 $'000
7 9 BEIE — 7 W N A B Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
A A BE HE A Provision for the year 14,448 8,575
DA A B 4t Over-provision in respect of prior years (668) (384)
__ 13,780 ___ 8191
AW B - FWYSMIE  Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
7 A B E A Provision for the year 8,738 4,472
DL A I 4t ) Over-provision in respect of prior years (97) (715)
_ 8,641 __ 3757
i %iE B I Deferred tax
FE AE 438 ] T R M 2 R Origination and reversal of temporary differences| 8,110 (832
30,531 11,616

2009/10 Annual Report
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6 Income tax in the consolidated income
statement (continued)

(@)

(®)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
(continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2010 is calculated
at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

Taxation for subsidiaries based outside Hong Kong is charged
at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), certain of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries are eligible for the exemption from income tax for
two years starting from the first profitable year of operation
and thereafter, a 50 percent relief from their applicable tax
rate for the following three years (“the tax holiday”). Pursuant
to the notice on the Implementation Rules of the
Grandfathering Relief under the New Tax Law, Guofa (2007)
No0.39 issued on 26 December 2007 by the State Council,
one of the PRC subsidiaries continue to enjoy the tax holiday
under the grandfathering provision of the New Tax Law with
the standard tax rate of 25% until 31 December 2012.

Under the new tax law, a 10% withholding tax will also be
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries, however, only the dividends
attributable to the profits of the financial period starting from 1
January 2008 will be subject to the withholding tax. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investor. Pursuant to a double tax arrangement
between the PRC and Hong Kong, the Group is subject to a
withholding tax at a rate of 5% for any dividend payments
from certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

2010 2009
$000 $'000
Ik Bt A s A Profit before taxation 228,903 91,084
e A A BR B R 2 Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated
o 2% 5 53 W Bl I 36 at the rates applicable to profits in the
2 4 FBLIA countries concerned 26,071 7,097
VNEELE N a2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 6,872 7,008
AR A 2 B Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (2,028) (807)
AN DA R AR BE R ERR Tax effect of tax losses not recognised in prior
ZHEERZ B years but utilised during the year - (162)
A R R DA FE AR K TE R Tax effect of tax losses not recognised in prior
ZBIE 4R 2 5 years but recognised in the current year - (421)
KR ZBEERZ 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 381 -
PALTEAR 2 8 7 Over-provision in respect of prior years (765) (1,099)
B BB IE BH Actual tax expense 30,531 11,616
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7 Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

HEMW e Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
A MK (i
[ &y K R ) %€ 16 4L ik % At
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Directors’ fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $000
#17#3F Executive Directors
B 3 Bk Chan Sui Kau 30 30 1,463 1,463 1,200 1,200 - - 2,693 2693
Bk % Chan Wing Fui, Peter 30 30 - - 1,025 1,025 - - 1,055 1,055
Bk £ Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 30 30 2,636 2,730 2,206 2,050 72 72 4,944 4882
J BB Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 30 30 2,064 2236 2537 2,850 72 72 4,703 5,188
R & Fu Sing Yam, William 30 30 1,500 1,625 2,008 2,300 60 60 3,598 4,015
Bik#  ChanWing Kee 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
BikiE  ChanWing To 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
b A Independent
F##H1i  Non-executive
) Directors
PEE  Leung Hok Lim 160 160 - - - - - - 160 160
T H Wong Lam 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
M Lin Keping 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
Jii 4L+ Sze Cho Cheung,
(P 3E) Michael (note) - - - - - - - - - -
490 490 © 7,663 8,054 8,976 9,425 204 204 17,333 18,173
B+ MM AESCAER S F-FRFEZH AN H# Note: Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael was appointed as an Independent Non-

TN BSLFPATE R -

MRAEA o~ d] B Rt B4 T8 TH S 2
e MR IV A0 R A R Al O
at B — B M B R S5 2508 o AR 4E B u
TEAF FE M I i T o
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executive Director on 26 March 2010.

The details of share options granted to certain directors under the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed under the paragraph
“Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note 25.

No share options were granted to the directors in the current or the

prior year.
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e M E A L

TERfMERmz Nt > I (5%
T - ) BEFE > A B
WM GEH7IH o B ZFFILE A
=t —HIEHMAN LM EBENT

Individuals with the highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, five (2009: four)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
emoluments of the other individual for the year ended 31 March
2009 were as follows:

2009
$'000
4 Mo At B 4 Salaries and other emoluments 650
¥ 7% AL AL Discretionary bonuses 500
FERY NG RF e Retirement scheme contributions 60

BE_FEZAF=A=+—HILME &K
Mz ANLtzMaeREm Y

1,210

The emoluments of the individual with the highest emoluments for
the year ended 31 March 2009 was within the following band:

$1,000,001 - 1,500,000

A2 v B AR B RHE Al ik A

Ay T RE 4 e SROME A 55 4 i R LS — 4
LA AL 7 BAHS ¥ 325 2 16 F1148,903,000
I (" EEIJUE © 52,805,00000) (B L5
27(a)lH) -

R

(@) FF KK 7 F
i W B AR 2 ) He BE AR AR 2 AR
A % 2 I B R {1 i 196,587,000
JC (B Z LA 80,187,0007T) M E
BEAT 4 % $153,832,000/8 (- FE
JU4E + 153,832,000%) ¥ %8 A% 51 A o

(b) BF R A F
M = — AR R R T LA
40 (5L 48 V9 0V A Y 5 AR AE
Wt R - R TR R IR
48 4 s ) B R R R AN B OB — B -

9

10

2009
A #
Number of
individuals

1

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $148,903,000 (2009: $52,805,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 27(a)).

Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $196,587,000 (2009: $80,187,000) and
158,832,000 (2009: 153,832,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares outstanding during both 2010 and 2009. Accordingly,
the diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share for both 2010 and 2009.

2009/10 % # |
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AR T 925 988 i 65 0 R ALy R A B R o
$e B i A B2 B B e R AT BUE BN BB E
TR L B B 2 B AT Al A9 7R 0 M B R — B
I3 AL C BT 51 7Y 4 A o
A 4 [ Sl 91 AR ) BB BF o DLAL AR DL
N HY A e

(@)

B A AR E - B E R IR
o

FEETRRR ¢ AT B SOR AR A9 7 B A
WE B .

BB R AR B S AR Qe i A E R

JE i e

P EME - WA EEEME S WK
A o

A ERA - BERAMR

IR R L S Ll <
Fie B o A SR P R R AT B HEA
SRR NI PEY R i e o
B HEMAR:

rERE E A e A L EE - EIE
HELRBEE - HEALFEHEL
AR - HAL B EE - fEHE
R g REBIHEE
Bl K Bl S EH Y~ A AT R B B
HREHA R EEE - A HEHE
JRE ASF R A B L A B A 3 DA B R AT B
C NI N T B (LT = R

WA T3 T B % 92 45 0 i A
B0 8 S S o PR 0
15 0 S 3 0 4 I 5 2
AR

AR S A S 8 R 2 A T
RABLATE A > B OA @4 FE
BLBS ~ T 85 R & A o T
AR R LA BEE A > [
Fe 8 848 |2 BL 48 JF R B A Y R K8
PR A IR o A B R R AR B AT
A AR B AR i 2 gy
5 ) > G BB B A T S W i i
T MR A) A SEAT BUBAR -
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11 Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(@)

Sales of garments: the manufacture, retail and wholesale of
garments.

Licensing of trademarks: the management and licensing of
trademarks for royalty income.

Printing and related services: the manufacture and sale of
printed products.

Property rental: the leasing of properties to generate rental
income.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interests in associates,
other financial assets, trading securities, club memberships,
deferred tax assets, cash and cash equivalents, current tax
recoverable and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade and other payables and bank borrowings with
the exception of other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA”, i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including investment income and “depreciation and
amortisation” is regarded as including impairment losses on
non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as share of profits less losses of
associates and other head office or corporate administration
costs.
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B 1 H WA B R S AR B AT 4R
9 RSN o A B 2R AT AT B 2 AT
WA (BLAE A B HAb 3 FF M A) > H
Jr R HAE B Bl 4 R B FE
We A RS2 gy A A Y T B
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B 2 % S0 WL B E A -
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S AR - A B A
O B A A1 B A S L 5 28 7
FORF (BL LA 17 0820 B M 28 38
BB - T

11 Segment reporting (continued)

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales),
interest income and expenses from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segments sales are priced with reference to
prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
2009 is set out below:

WA i 1 B A LUET L ik
Licensing Printing and
Sales of garments of trademarks related services Property rental Total
2010 2000 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
$000  $000  $000  $000  S000  §000  $000  $000  $000  $000
HKHMEEFZUA  Revenue from external customers | 881,358 876,044 76,185 59533 32154 34675 1,358 1,684 991,055 971936
S HA Inter-segment revenue - - 1353 -0 1718 2194 6566 6511 21,82 8705
CESTE 1IN Reportable segment revenue 881,358 676044 89,723 59533 33872 36860 7,924 8195 1,012,877 980,641
ARG W2 BAH Reportable segment profit
(WRERERA) (adjusted EBITDA) 157,083 102281 40,758 5220 5438  533% 6909 7457 210,188 120,204
RIERZHERA  Interest income from bank deposits 306 595 10 - - 2% - - 316 623
MBS Interest expense (B61) (1712 (180) - - - - - A (72
KUEEZERBS  Depreciation and amortisation
for the year 21,43 29334 15 - 905 1,193 2579 2129 24742 3265
ARG EE Reportable segment assets 291,814 330066 328207 127520 34120 25164 63408 53423 717,549 545173
AEEREFRHEE  Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year 11811 26,055 181,493 - 535 566 - - 193839 26,621
(R EFAR Reportable segment liabilities 130664 115162 80942 46372 3833 4734 32 310 215551 166,578
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11 4 ¥ W& (80 11 Segment reporting (continued)
(b) HEESHUA - Hias ~ BERA (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets
&2 G and liabilities
2010 2009
$°000 $'000
B A Revenue
ZH R A A U A Reportable segment revenue 1,012,877 980,641
43 M A 2 e Elimination of inter-segment revenue (21,822) (8,705)
RO E R Consolidated turnover 991,055 971,936
i F Profit
ZE IR 43 T A8 4 s A Reportable segment profit 210,188 120,294
53 ¥ T e 1 2 g Elimination of inter-segment profits (6,009) (4,416)
JEIR AT AZE B Reportable segment profit derived from the
EMMUASNE T Group’s external customers 204,179 115,878
JRE A% T 45 2N | i A S 2 Share of profits less losses of associates 29,478 17,072
B I S FD R g I AR Net gain on disposal of associate 7,899 -
HoAth g A Other revenue 10,763 11,496
Hoth (5 18) ik %5 5 58 Other (loss)/net income (4,428) 8,531
T 8 I 6 Depreciation and amortisation (24,976) (32,886)
Rl R A Finance costs (910) (1,712)
WM E i, B5#)  Valuation gains/(losses) on
investment properties 20,500 (13,000)
FKAH BN E K42 F  Unallocated head office and
corporate expenses (13,602) (14,295)
& B T &% A Ui A Consolidated profit before taxation 228,903 91,084
% A Assets
ZR R A A A Reportable segment assets 717,549 545,173
43 B TH] R AR 2 Elimination of inter-segment receivables (4,883) (637)
712,666 544 536
T 4% 8 A RE 45 Interests in associates 139,592 109,962
At B B & Other financial assets 69,781 34,642
EHE MR &3 Trading securities 2,352 4,537
o Club memberships 860 860
1R A B TH K Deferred tax assets 51,583 55,679
BHe kB 4SEY Cash and cash equivalents 214,550 238,615
7 W w] AR ] B IE Current tax recoverable 537 2,091
KoL 2 #AF KAEERE  Unallocated head office and corporate assets 1,915 642
bR A ME R Consolidated total assets 1,193,836 991,564
115 Liabilities
ZH R A o) B A Reportable segment liabilities 215,551 166,578
43 0 [ R A B 2 e Elimination of inter-segment payables (4,883) 637)
210,668 165,941
A J1 1 A I A5 B Current tax liabilities 18,134 8,930
1R A B TH A A Deferred tax liabilities 14,234 11,181
KB 2 A E MR Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 6,330 7,265
RO R AR Consolidated total liabilities 249,366 193,317

2009/10 Annual Report
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11 Segment reporting (continued)

(¢) Geographic information
The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers
and (ii) the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets, lease
premium and interests in associates (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the asset,
in the case of fixed assets and lease premium, the location to
which they are managed, in the case of intangible assets, and
the location of operations, in the case of interests in associates.

s

a
o
Ffo

KHIREFBRA W s Ik i B B e
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
2010 2009 2010 2009
$°000 $’000 $’000 $°000
(FE Hh) Hong Kong (place of
domicile) 403,118
Taiwan 109,310 97,516
A b [ Other areas of the PRC 395,221 49,235
Others 64,287 114,772
568,818 261,523
408,773
2009/10 4
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12 & ¥ i 12 Fixed assets
(@) KEEH (a) The Group
REERER
fifk A MEMs S a A A
PAR )1 KRR kB R P2 SRR
e B& B 3t B it % RENE wit
Interest in
leasehold
Leasehold land held
Land and improvements, for own use
buildings motor vehicles, under
held for Plantand  furniture and operating Investment
own use machinery  equipment Sub-total lease properties Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
WAL Cost or valuation:
REZEFFZAERA—H At 1 April 2008 121,363 48228 122,999 292,590 8,472 66,300 367,362
B 3 0 Exchange adjustments 8 516 (2,339 (1,041) 183 - (858)
RE Additions - 1,191 25,430 26,621 - - 26,621
hilks Disposals - 912 (13.121) (14,033) - - (14,083)
NAEERE Fair value adjustment - - - - - (13,000 (13,000
REZZENFEZAZ+—H At31 March 2009 122,145 49,028 132,969 304,137 8,655 53,300 366,092
R : Representing:
A Cost 122,145 49,023 132,969 304,137 8,605 - 312,792
- —FFNE Vialuation - 2009 - - - - - 53,300 53,300
122,145 49,023 132,969 304,137 8,655 53,300 366,092
REZZZNENA—H At 1 Apri 2009 122,145 49,028 132,969 304,137 8,655 53,300 366,092
0 5 % Exchange adjustments 85 7 1088 1224 15 - 1239
hE Addtions - 613 13,457 14,070 - - 14,070
hE Disposals - (289) (16,044) (16,333) - - (16,339)
EE L Reclassification 10,400 - - 10,400 - (10,400 -
AEERE Fair value adjustment - - - - - 20,500 20,500
REE-=FEZAZF—H A1 March 2010 132,610 49418 131,470 313,49 8,670 63,400 385,568
R : Representing:
A& Cost 132,610 49,418 131,470 313,498 8,670 - 322,168
fii-=%-%% Valuation - 2010 - - - - - 63,400 63,400
132,610 49418 131,470 313,498 8,670 63,400 385,568




12 Wl & & i (8)
(@ KEMEH (4)

Rit o RATH

RZEFZAEMA-A
ExXng
REREERE

t 8 B ¢

REFFAF=A=1—H
REFFREMA A
B

KEREE LG
i & B ¢

RoZ-ZE=A=1-H
J i 4 ¢
BoZ-ZE=A=1-H

REZFEAE=A=1-H

Accumulated
amortisation and
depreciation:

At 1 April 2008

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2009

At 1 April 2009

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2010

Net book value:

At 31 March 2010

At 31 March 2009

12 Fixed assets (continued)

(@)

The Group (continued)

38,791 36,482 830 163573 2901 - 168474
33 247 (1574 199) 63 - 1931)
2670 2.05 27073 31,948 15 - 32,106
- 012 1200 (1293 - - (12.98)
1,794 802 101779 18159 3,122 184717
41,79 802 101779 181506 3,122 -
2 19 657 7% 5 - 740
3,121 1,944 18972 24,087 159 - 24,19
- 08y (14628 (14911) - - (14.911)
44944 077 106785 191456 3,286 194,742
87,666 9,601 4685 122,042 5,384 63400 190,826
80,351 11,001 M0 12250 5,533 5330 181375
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12 B & " i (s) 12 Fixed assets (continued)
(b) AL A (b) The Company
LA e -
R~ R Bk s
Leasehold improvements,
motor vehicles, furniture
and equipment
2010 2009
$000 $'000
M Cost:
wA—H At 1 April 5,572 5,572
AN Additions 540 -
iR Disposals (1,574) -
W=H=1+—H At 31 March 4,538 5,572
Bl o 5 - Accumulated depreciation:
wH—H At 1 April 5,271 5,041
AR T Charge for the year 234 230
B TR A ) Written back on disposals (1,574) -
W=H=1—H At 31 March 3,931 5,271
G 1T A - Net book value:
W=H=1—H At 31 March 607 301
(ORE: 3-8/ EXV R KA (¢) Revaluation of investment properties
AEEMFAEREDEDH _F—F All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31
= H =4 — H & I A AT March 2010 on an open market value basis calculated by
S — KPP RAE A B X BRI reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
RN 7 e 2 BRAR & i A VT 380G % 18 potential. The valuations were carried out by an independent
FYETHBLEHELS BT EZ N firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services
BH T (E B HEEAT A B - s ARl Z B Limited, who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong
THAFHNEMETEEG S > % Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
JT Al (B9 26 2 1 B R A B 4 8 and category of the properties being valued.
g o

2009/10 Annual Report
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Fixed assets (continued)

(d) The analysis of net book value or valuation of properties of the

mF Group is as follows:

s In Hong Kong

—RMME - long leases 39,003

— e — medium-term leases 63,645

B U DA Ak db [ Outside Hong Kong

— g — medium-term leases 25,696

—EMME — short-term leases 10,840
139,184

L% : Representing:

+ o Land and buildings 80,351

@Ry E Investment properties 53,300
133,651

WL EMERFEDH Interest in leasehold land held for

Z ML+ b HE 2% own use under operating lease 5,533

(e MG T AT Z [ A &

BB RS TR FFILE
=A==+t - AR EAHES
10,900,0007c Z ¥ 3 > #%F W) E K
7 RAT LA SRAT (S B - TR
FEAFE=ZA=+—H - BfHz
RITFEEHANAST L - R F
— AR A E R R AT T R AT -

139,184

(e) Fixed assets pledged to banks

Certain investment properties with an aggregate carrying value
of $10,900,000 as at 31 March 2009 were pledged to banks
for obtaining banking facilities of which none was utilised as at
31 March 2009. No fixed assets were pledged to banks as at
31 March 2010.

2009/10 4
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12 B & " i (s) 12 Fixed assets (continued)
N KEBEREYWHEZFFWT - () Details of the Group’s investment properties are as follows:
Term of
b 5 HuiM® MM  Location Existing use lease
JUBE B T ) I 1 1855 T & i G/F, 18 Ng Fong Street, Factories and Medium
R 1A San Po Kong, Kowloon shops
JUHE 1 ¥ B 1 458 /N el Unit B, C, D, G and H on 7/F, Offices, Medium
e | L 3 K B 7R g K and Car Parking Space factories and
BC D GKH=E > =1 No. 8 on 1/F, warehouses
Je 11 85 15 B {3 Wah Shun Industrial Building,
4 Cho Yuen Street, Yau Tong,
Kowloon
JUHE 155 145 2855 T w Unit Nos. 2 and 4 on 6/F, and Factories Medium
F AR T K i ot Unit Nos. 1 and 2 on 8/F,
QM A J ShE 1 2% Lee Sum Factory Building,
28 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon
(e) UIAEMERMMZEEEE (g) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
ALEEMBEMNEMR BT EWE The Group leases out investment properties under operating
L — M2 A —2EmE > Bf leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
REBE PR 06 200 B AR A0 > e IRE T AT two years, with an option to renew the lease upon expiry at
R EHEE - FHKEHE which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
YWAE GRS - includes contingent rentals.
D& 72 A0 B R A (0 A L At 5 T 2 4 All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
GREMECRZWE > SEEL meet the definition of investment properties are classified as
wEYE - investment properties.
A AE B AR PR AN T R R 2 S T B The Group’s total future minimum lease receipts under non-
H 1% i i 2 5 AR AL B A9 3 30 4 o cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:
o
2010 2009
$000 $'000
—4E A Within 1 year 2,155 2,629
— AR MH IR After 1 year but within 5 years 951 367
3,106 2,996

2009/10 Annual Report
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13 1% B % & 13 Intangible assets

AR 4L
The Group

i 1t T 13 k]

Licence Trademarks Total

$’000 $'000 $'000
%3 Cost:
B TEENENA—H - At 1 April 2008
CEENE=ZA=+—HK 31 March 2009 and
“EZNEMNH—H 1 April 2009 9,364 102,050 111,414
KE Additions - 180,309 180,309
HNoF—-FE=ZH=+—H  At31March 2010 9,364 282,359 291,723
Bl gy - Accumulated amortisation:
RZFEFENENA—H At 1 April 2008 2,925 - 2,925
A AR B B Charge for the year 780 - 780
BoEENFEZH=+—H  At31March 2009 3,705 - 3,705
AR NAEMNH —H At 1 April 2009 3,705 - 3,705
A FE B Charge for the year 780 - 780
Yo Z—FREZH=+—H  At31 March 2010 4,485 - 4,485
JIE i A Net book value:
W oFE-FF=ZH=Z+—H  At31March 2010 4,879 282,359 287,238
RoETZRAEZA=+—H At 31 March 2009 5,659 102,050 107,709

(@) FREEFE T —AF (53 R 2 4G 5 (a) The licence is amortised over a period of 12 years being the

(b

(©

AR 2 RS o A 2 i
2 R A SR R AR R T B R
A e

[ Guy Laroche] 74 % & [ Aquascutum |
PRl A T e PR A o AR
o w1 BOR B RE S 1G)E AR -

HE_2 -2 -1 =-+—H
1k N R E A DT iR
[ Aquascutum ] 7 5% 75 55 1 1l % £ 455
421 85 I B K S b [ A ik A RE
BT A RER] ~ T RS > B
B £ 13,700,0003 & (40 % 7
173,716,0000T) > H ML A4 2 36 &
=2 A 5 6,593,0007C ©

(b)

(©

estimated useful life of the licence. The amortisation charge
for the year is included within “distribution costs” in the
consolidated income statement.

The Guy Laroche and Aquascutum trademarks are considered
to have indefinite useful lives and are accounted for in
accordance with accounting policy note 1(i).

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group acquired
the right, title and interest in the intellectual property rights of
Aguascutum trademark in relation to 42 countries and regions
in Asia from the vendor (“the Vendor”) at a consideration of
£13,700,000 (equivalent to $173,716,000) and legal and
professional fees incurred thereof $6,593,000.
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13 9% 9B & i (8)

JE [ IY] WT 458 0 AE ] R B 06k A )

[ Guy Laroche] i 1 & [ Aquascutum] i 12
ik 5 0 WT 43 B 8 57 5k Il 2 [ Guy Laroche]
[7] [ Aquascutum] 3 %% o

13 Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment tests for trademarks with indefinite useful economic life
The Guy Laroche and Aquascutum trademarks service the Guy

Laroche and Aguascutum operations, respectively, which are
separately identifiable.

2010 2009

$°000 $'000

[ Aquascutum] & 1% Aqguascutum trademark 180,309 -
[ Guy Laroche] 1 12 Guy Laroche trademark 102,050 102,050
282,359 102,050

[ Guy Laroche] 7 1 J% [ Aquascutum.] i £2:
Z AT ] < R AR R R AT L E T o
A B T R A8 TR A A 2 T AR B
B EEE o TAEMR 2 BE R E R A
TR R - BHIGAAE > ol &
BT ARYE 2 B AR 2 AT AT £ B v g 5
B MR B A SR 1 (E R L Tl ) 4
%ﬁ o

AT (E RO 2 E B AR

The recoverable amount of the Guy Laroche and Aquascutum
trademarks are determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on a five-year
period approved by management. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated without any growth rate. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:

- RR - Growth rate
—HE MR
— = — Discount rate

R R KW R
TED R R R R ERR o B 2 A
LR DAL 2 RT3 & & R -

[ Aquascutum| i B [ Guy Laroche] ¥ B2
Aquascutum Guy Laroche
trademark trademark
2010 2010 2009
0% 0% 0%

— Gross contribution rate 84% 84% 89%

10% 10% 8%

Management determined the growth rate and gross contribution
rate based on the past performance and its expectations for market
development. The discount rate used is the weighted average cost
of capital of the Group.

14 MLEHEEMN 14 Lease premium
7% 45
The Group
2010 2009
$'000 $'000
A Cost 9,595 9,595
i 5, W 2% Exchange adjustments 333 132
9,928 9,727

2009/10 Annual Report
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SRR M (8

HEL A HE 2 T 4 — TR B 2 0 2 AT 35 B
— P 3 2 AH BRI SO 2 BORT - MR
Wi &8 2~ WS FEAL 2 4 26 > BRI AR
ERLETT ME% - Wit HEHE
2 1WA J WA S KR W] R A AR A
T AR R P R R R E R R SR

14

Lease premium (continued)

Lease premium represents an amount paid by a subsidiary to obtain
the right to lease a property in France. In the event that the subsidiary
vacates the property, the subsidiary would be entitled to sell the
right to the lease to the next tenant. Accordingly, the lease premium
is considered to have an indefinite useful economic life and is carried
in the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses.

Ws A 6 % 15 Investments in subsidiaries
AR A H
The Company

2010 2009
$°000 $°000
JE BTy > FRAE Unlisted shares, at cost 11,003 11,003
JRE i Bt & 2w 2K IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 779,934 578,997
790,937 590,000
JRE AF BT JB 2 ) K T Amounts due to subsidiaries (44,954) (3,624)
745,983 586,376
e e R Less: impairment losses (113,300) (119,900)
632,683 466,476

B T — ME i B 4 Rl 2 K IE (LLAE B %
0.5/E 5+ 5) %4 163,189,0007C (= FEF JL
4E 1 150,298,0007T) 2 Ak > H: i E Wi K
A5F B B 2> W) ZRIE T AL e D K A [E]
FE R o e B M ASH B R N W 2 IR
AN EAEH —F RN A e EE -

5 F B 2> T 2 OB RE I RO 25125
HZEH126H ©

BB A v B AR

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and have no fixed terms of repayment except for an amount due
from a subsidiary of $163,189,000 (2009: $159,298,000) which is
interest bearing at 0.5% per annum. The amounts due from its
subsidiaries are not expected to be settled within one year from
the balance sheet date.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 125 to
126.

16 Interests in associates

I TRy AR ME  Unlisted shares, at cost = - =
Listed shares, at cost
Share of net assets

b ERAE
JE A 5 E T (A

B B R

(@) N_F-FFE=ZA=+—H AL
A bl b TR R A A 2 R A
T {H 45 136,816,000 JG (—FE LA -
59,354,0007C) ©

Less: impairment loss

e Y| P A |

The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$’000 $'000 $°000 $'000
30,000
- - 12,595 12,595
139,592 109,962 - -
139,592 109,962 12,595 42,595
- - - (25,280)
139,592 109,962 12,595 17,315

(a) The market value of the Company’s interest in the ordinary
shares of the above listed investment at 31 March 2010 was
$136,816,000 (2009: $59,354,000).
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16 Bk 8 2 v B %% (s) 16 Interest in associates (continued)

) M_EENF—H_T-H  K4f£ () On 22 January 2009, the Group has entered into an agreement
9 B — 7 5 e A B with an independent third party to dispose of its interest in
W S T RE R 2 Wk o ARE AT A associate for a consideration of approximately
L ¥ 11,980,0007T (1% 1% 13,625,000 RMB11,980,000 (equivalent to $13,625,000). This transaction
L) R ZFE-FHEZH=Z+—H was completed on 31 March 2010 and a net gain on disposal
TEIAL G MR AR E A A RN of $7,899,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
Bk A5 UL 3 75 % 7,899,0007C ° statement for the year ended 31 March 2010.

(ORI - AN N S (¢) Summary financial information on associates:

% e £1 1% BE 2 B A Yt A
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
$°000 $°000 $°000 $’000 $’000

R R 2010

100% 100 percent 1,255,154 (566,548) 688,606 2,056,440 141,157

ALEE 2 HEBMEL  Group’s effective interest 257,056  (117,464) 139,592 421,159 29,478

BRI 2009

100% 100 percent 1,181,556 (630,917) 550,639 2,033,908 79,862

AEEZHBHES  Group's effective interest 243,825  (133,863) 109,962 416,863 17,072
B FEEB SN A 2GRS ER S Details of the principal associates are set out on pages 127 to
127H £ 5 128H - 128.

17 3 fib Ik 3% 8 W % & A 17 Other non-current financial assets
A 45 4 Y /AT |
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
¥ 47 & 2 )05 5 Held-to-maturity debt
securities

b Unlisted 1,000 961 - -

3 A B A w27 Other equity securities

E S T N Unlisted equity security 6,900 6,900 - -

W W E S Less: impairment loss (6,900) (6,900) - -

W N A AR B Loan to associate and accrued

F B (B 5% 56 31(c) ) interest (note 31(c)) 33,681 33,681 33,681 33,681
JE Wi B R Loan receivable 35,100 - = -
68,781 33,681 33,681 33,681

69,781 34,642 33,681 33,681

2009/10 Annual Report
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I b I i B W R (80

(a) Tt N W 2 B AR AR - LUAE B
6wt B KR F K H R FH 104 &
W E—— - HUH R -

AR EIRN _FE—-FEZH =
+— B Z A A AE{E % 32,600,0007C
(" EE I 32,261,00000) © 2 FL
BB T LA oK 2 £ 4 i 5 2 35 (8 4% )
Bl T H 2 87T 8 R S i AR
i 5 o

(b)) HOM I A 38 5 A S TS of B 7
AR ZRE -

(c) MEMCE A A HEAT > LUAE R &340 H
9 i 2 SR AT IR 3 IF M A 2 &
B ¥R -F—-—FLALAM
oo BLME R R DA O 2 T E
B MY R AR AT

B ERA —F—FRE=ZA =1+ —
H 2 2\ fefd {E £435,223,0000C © 24 7t
BB S DL ok A B 4 i i 2 B (B 4% W]
JE A A T H 2 BT B R R T B AR
fh 5 o

17 Other non-current financial assets (continued)

(a) The loan to associate is unsecured, interest bearing at 6%
per annum and repayable after ten years from the date of
advance on 9 November 2011.

The fair value of the loan to associate at 31 March 2010 is
$32,600,000 (2009: $32,261,000). The fair value is estimated
as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at current
market interest rates for similar financial instruments.

(b) Other equity securities represent the Group’s investment in a
corporation in the PRC.

(¢) The loan receivable is secured, interest-bearing at 3-month
LIBOR plus 2% and repayable on 7 September 2011. The
loan receivable is secured by certain fixed assets and intangible
assets of the Vendor.

The fair value of the loan receivable at 31 March 2010 is
$35,223,000. The fair value is estimated as the present value
of future cash flows, discounted at current market interest
rates for similar financial instruments.

FEHEMNBZ &S 18 Trading securities
A4 H P A
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$’000 $'000 $°000 $'000
TR AR R R Listed equity securities
(2 05 e A8 {H) (at fair value)
— AT - in Hong Kong 2,352 993 2,352 993
AR B R S5 Listed debt securities
(4% 2> FfEAE) (at fair value)
— i DL AN i [ - outside Hong Kong - 3,544 - -
2,352 4,537 2,352 993
ir & 19 Inventories
(@ BEABFEANZGFE G : (a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:
A4 M
The Group
2010 2009
$’000 $'000
AL B Raw materials 10,655 19,851
TE Work in progress 8,701 3,316
SR Finished goods 82,651 117,186
102,007 140,353
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19 1718 (#) 19 Inventories (continued)
(b) TR 7% B0t AR a £ 017 B (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
BESIWT and included in the profit or loss is as follows:
7 4
The Group

2010 2009

$000 $000

CEAFEZREME Carrying amount of inventories sold 351,010 385,935

17 B Bl Write down of inventories 4,602 7,813

AF 55 0w 43 ) Reversal of write-down of inventories (5,114) (14,420)

350,498 379,328

F5 A AT B SO ) T FR R R L)
2 MU BE T 5 BOUR AR B TE 1 B
Hadm e

20 M W Mk Ak B I b HE ok

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years
arose due to an increase in the estimated realisable value of
garments as a result of a change in consumer preferences.

20 Trade and other receivables

A4 A 4 ¥
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
JRE Wi R R % i 2R b Trade debtors and bills
receivable 92,738 64,060 - -
W BE AR A Less: allowance for doubtful
(Bff 53 25 20(0) ) debts (note 20(b)) (12,227) (12,159) - -
80,511 51,901 - -
e 4 M TE A K Deposits and prepayments 44,065 50,143 1,275 340
JRE Wi B 7 2 W] 3E Amounts due from related
(i 5 55 31(c)H) companies (note 31(c)) 6 3,970 - -
o T g R Club memberships 860 860 750 750
125,442 106,874 2,025 1,090

A S ] B A s R T A iR B B EC At e
Wosk (Br¥ 4 ~ BT R LG aiE > &
£ B J AR N | OB 4y 1 4% 23,793,000 TG
(T ZTILAE © 24,921,0007C) & 750,000
JC (ZEZJULAFE ¢+ 750,0000C) - AT
R s R R -

(@) R
JRE WA H SR B HL Al B WA 1 4G R A R
R EE PR (2 30 B 2R B IR k(A
i) > HEE4HE A 2R
LU

2009/10 Annual Report

All of the Group’s and the Company'’s trade and other receivables,
apart from deposits and prepayments and club memberships of
$23,793,000 (2009: $24,921,000) and $750,000 (2009: $750,000)
respectively, are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and

bills receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the
following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:
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20 ME WOHR w B 3 fb ME MK (s0)

20 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(@) HEH M7 () (a) Ageing analysis (continued)
A4 M
The Group
2010 2009
$°000 $°000
i Current _ 51,351 32,497
b ik — 18 A Less than 1 month past due 18,857 13,919
M — % =M A 1 to 3 months past due 7,393 5,069
A 3 = H More than 3 months but less than
A A+ = A 12 months past due 2,910 416
i WA Amounts past due 29,160 19,404
80,511 51,901
JE Wiz T T T M AT SR T A BE 2R H ) Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 to 90

(®)

%30 90 H A 2 1) o A4 E]Fi%@l
W2 HE— 25 R A R B RE 5 28(a)H -

ﬁEﬁWELl&EE ZZJWELI&TFEZ&@EE
BRMEAR T Uk > BRIEALE
VL i ] 5% 3k JH 2 nT RE P A A
BT {D@ﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬁi‘%ﬁﬁ
E K% B WA S R B (2 B B s
1(H) -

A RIR B 2 ) (B
KA BRI ) R

(®)

days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy is set out in note 28(a).

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 1(k)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

7 4
The Group
2010 2009
$°000 $°000
AW H—H At 1 April 12,159 15,122
i b3, 37 % Exchange adjustments 290 (2,013)
. ffE 58 9 (8 5 18 (B 5 57 5(c)H Impairment loss recognised (note 5(c)) 3,607 2,833
T s 18 1 W) (B 5F 56 5(c)MH) Reversal of impairment loss (note 5(c)) (3,310) -
85 AR AT i ] 2 4 AR Uncollectible amounts written off (519) (3,783)
W=H=+—H At 31 March 12,227 12,159

W oE—FEEZH =+ — El $%
] 05 B 3K 10,045,0000T (- FE L
4E : 6,000,0007T) ﬁémtwwma
52 A A ) S TR 2 R kB
WM BN ZEF AR 5

J& WAL > TE A AT 0 ] R 4 I i R
Z—FRgy o WL Eﬁﬁ% T R
W 3844 /58,101,000 JC ( FE L4 ¢

5,335,0007C) © A4 @]ﬁiﬂ? TJEEZ%?%*
B A7 A7 AL TR o

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s trade debtors and bills
receivable of $10,045,000 (2009: $6,000,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that only a portion of
the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of $8,101,000 (2009:
$5,335,000) were recognised. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

2009/10 % # |
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20 HE W MR Ak M I fb ME e X (%) 20 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(c I T I 1 2 JE R K (¢) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not impaired
S AR ] A1 B kA 2 I (E 2 B The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that
W Z IRE A - are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:
A4 M
The Group
2010 2009
$000 $'000
oK 1 B (E Neither past due nor impaired 51,351 31,832
b — | H Less than 1 month past due 17,507 13,919
i — 2 =M H 1 to 3 months past due 6,799 5,069
a1 A =R A More than 3 months but
{ERED i g i 5 less than 12 months past due 2,910 416
27,216 19,404
78,567 51,236
HUE e a0 47 o ok (R 2 B Wi 3k BEL A 2 NI Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
WMET R IGEHRZEF A - a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.
L 3 A {H 4 3 (E 2 M i 3K B 2 44 Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
VEFAH ZERFFREALRZ number of independent customers that have a good track
G ER Sk R Ar - MRPEEERKE > H record with the Group. Based on past experience,
NE SR R E KA S > HAL R management believes that no impairment allowance is
AT 5 A 2 T 7 ol Il > A PR R A necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
{5 B ZEUE UL 45 &5 6% 1F e (B4 o a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
SR I 1 o S S SR S considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
e collateral over these balances.
21 BERBEFHEDY 21 Cash and cash equivalents
(@) BleRBlEEMEYHE & (a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
A 4 Y /|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$°000 $’000 $’000 $’000
SRAT B LAt B 5 Deposits with banks and
WM 2 A7 K other financial institutions 1,068 123,526 - 122,458
AT KB & Cash at bank and in hand 213,482 115,089 56,313 10,233
HEAMENRZ Cash and cash equivalents in
e kB &% EY the balance sheet 214,550 238,615 56,313 132,691
$RA7T 5 7 (B 5% %5 28TH)  Bank overdrafts (note 23) (9,844) (12,617)
A B ERERTR Cash and cash equivalents in
2 Bla KB A the consolidated cash flow
(=87 statement 204,706 225,998

2009/10 Annual Report
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21 e RBAEEEY (8)

21 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(b) ¥ BRBL HI it A ] G A A E B2 B (b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from

EWA : operations:

Bt 5 2010 2009
Note $°000 $'000

W L I v A Profit before taxation 228,903 91,084
FHEIAE Adjustments for:
— SR F Bk A — Bank interest income 4 (398) (2,330)
— W A FORLE A — Interest income from associate 4 (1,907) (1,911)
— oAt A Sl A - Other interest income 4 (659) -
— bRz BB A — Dividend income from listed securities 4 (17) (25)
— B H A [ — Net loss on disposal of

Z f 18 1 other fixed assets 4 907 1,070
—LEEEEHREZ — Net realised (gain)/loss

IS 5 on disposal of

(W 25) /s 18 7% trading securities 4 (25) 689
—VEFERER®2 Bl — Net unrealised (gain)/loss

R A N7 on trading

(M #s) e 1805 3 securities 4 (1,353) 2,215
— Rl & AR — Finance costs 5(a) 910 1,712
— MY E B A — Amortisation of intangible assets 5(c) 780 780
— P& — Depreciation 12(a) 24,037 31,948
—FrfEBR AL — Amortisation of land lease premium for

& RE 2 40 6 property held for own use 12(a) 159 158
—HEYEMME — Valuation (gains)/losses on investment

(W #5) /s 18 properties 12(a) (20,500) 13,000
— JRE A Bk 2\ A — Share of profits less losses of

ks 18 associates 16 (29,478) (17,072)
— W B A A A - Net gain on disposal of associate 16(b) (7,899) -
— [ 5l 127 Ol 43) — Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 511 (3,652)
BT ) Changes in working capital:
— BB ) - Decrease/(increase) in inventories 38,346 (2,644)
— M i R K R I i R 4B — (Increase)/decrease in trade debtors

(3 and bills receivable (28,610) 20,664
— ¥ JE AT O D — Decrease in deposits and prepayments 6,078 11,236
— JRE e B 2 2 R K — Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from

WA (3 related companies 3,964 (88)
— MEAF 2R, (W 2) - Increase/(decrease) in bills payable 3,829 618)
— JRE A AR B D - Decrease in trade creditors (3,984) (14,970)
— G Athy A RO HE — Increase/(decrease) in other payables

A () and accrued charges 12,154 (12,6993)
— JE AT B 2 2y R 3K - Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to

#m, Gib) related companies 1,268 (5,138)
mEEBEEZHE Cash generated from operations 227,016 113,415

2009/10 % # |
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22 M AF MR Ak B b HE A Ak

22 Trade

JE A% Ji 3K
JE A 52 9%

A 1 AT Bk % A
#

JE A B 2 2 ] K
(B 5E 5 31(c)HH)

Trade creditors
Bills payable

Other payables and accrued
charges

Amounts due to related
companies (note 31(c))

and other payables
A 45 Y /AN |
The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
35,649 38,256 - -
5,206 1,377 5177 1,377
40,855 39,633 5,177 1,377
124,444 113,667 6,083 5,742
3,189 1,921 222 119
168,488 155,221 11,482 7,238

v A7 6 AsF B T B G Al B AR S TR A A —
EREE -

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within
one year.

AT Rk B B A SRR A H 2 R

The ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills payable as of the

i balance sheet date are:
AR Y. Y/ |
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
— R N Bl Due within 1 month or
48 %1 IRF 3] 4 on demand 26,508 22,665 5177 1,377
— M\ H &% Due after 1 month but within
=8 A A 3 months 11,956 14,086 - -
=8 H & Due after 3 months but within
AN AR 6 months 1,085 1,935 = -
AN A & AR Due after 6 months but within
AR T A E 12 months 1,356 947 - -
40,855 39,633 5177 1,377

2009/10 Annual Report




23 MITHRAXKE X 23 Bank loans and overdrafts

W oFE—FE=ZA=+—H » $I7EK At 31 March 2010, the bank loans and overdrafts were repayable
B L 2 B F N as follows:

— 4F A B 4 G Within 1 year or on demand 14,518
— 4 1% 0 T A A After 1 year but within 2 years 1,947
A% 1 AR R After 2 years but within 5 years 1,520
3,467
17,985
W oE—FE=H=1+—H » KW At 31 March 2010, the unsecured bank loans and overdrafts were
MITER LB LU WT - as follows:

SRATIE X (M FE521(@)%H)  Bank overdrafts (note 21(a)) 12,617
HRAT K Bank loans 5,368

17,985
MR ZEENE=Z=4—H > As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group’s banking facilities were
AL T AT SR AT AE B R R B A R AR A not subject to the fulfilment of financial covenants.

B AW WRAE
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24

25

0 H 38 K R A

AL [ Th ¥ R GRS T A RE
By 2 3R > B iR E & i IR % 15 )
T 2 8 8 8oy 5 Hl AR &5 E (M98
Bastdl]) - e E T —E A e
POBKEE B2 AR EEH
RyEs s & nt# > R = L E B & B IR
BHBIWA Z5%mZ5H#E 3 &
AA BRI A 2 R & 20,0005C © [ #% 5t
BVE 2 3 5 BDRE B o

5 H B K 3% (B 5 T RE A BT 2 R 4
2008 W AT R SR 0 A e R R AR
B AL Ak 2 e OB IRER 1 o 2% 55
S AT B B AR R AR -

— RITE & 18 A7 2 WY JE 2% W) AR (55
B B HEL) 22 B — JE B AR AR AR R
1] &% wt & 1F 2 ek 2 ST T
B2 2%T A o W%l 3B AR AR AN A A
BERZEE BMRALETEGAAG
WA 2 (i o o wh e JU)) 26 1998 [ F A 47
FNE

JBe HE %5 H R B

A AN ZF WAL A = H R
W B RE S > R BE > RN R R
AT e AR R B BEA
AR AW 2 #E A - DL A 1 40
Je HE DL GRS A 28 ) 22 ey o i A T B R
W B A 0K B - R AR AR
AP AT o g TE I OHE O LA A RE
A M AR 2 ) B A B S DA B Ay S A

(@) 13T MR sk R fE 2T ¢

24

25

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and France participate in the
defined contribution retirement schemes operated by the local
authorities for employees in the PRC and France, respectively.
Contributions to these schemes are charged to the income
statement when incurred.

A subsidiary established in Taiwan participates in a defined benefit
retirement plan established in accordance with the local Labour
Standards Law. Contributions to the plan are based upon 2% of
wages and salaries paid. The scheme is not material to the Group
and, therefore, the disclosures required by HKAS 19, Employee
benefits issued by the HKICPA have not been presented.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
23 September 2004 whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up options
at nil consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options vest after 30 days from the date of grant and are then
exercisable within a period of ten years. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled gross in shares.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

T2 R
-REZFERE-A+LH

7 8 8 2 TR
-REFERE-A+LH

i 1 1 40

2009/10 Annual Report

Total share options granted

Options granted to Directors:
-on 17 January 2005

Options granted to employees:
-on 17 January 2005

Jik It
Jik I HE B H B 0B A 8RR
Number of Vesting  Contractual life
instruments conditions of options
7,850,000 % i H 1€ 30H T4
30 days from 10 years

the date of grant
3,817,000 % it H ##30H 4
30 days from 10 years

the date of grant

11,667,000
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25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

are as follows:

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options

A R AT 2

YT 2R 2 2
JA R OR AT il 2 W 1 HE

YR AT AT 2 I

CSEFERCFFNFZA =
— B o 1 0 TR -

R oFE-BE=ZH =+ —H KT
IS 2 AT A8 12100 (B FE N
AE 1 12.470) o JINRET- R R A KA

T HE SF- 3
A7 1 15
Weighted
average
exercise
price
$
Outstanding at the beginning
of the period 121
Lapsed during the period 121
Outstanding at the end
of the period 121
Exercisable at the end
of the period 121

MR B4 (L LA ¢ 64F) o

2010
Yl JBt il
H

Number of
options
000

11,667
(40)

11,627

11,627

JinHE - 3
17 18 15
Weighted
average
exercise
price

$

121
121

121

121

2009
I Pz e
A

Number of
options
000

11,791
(124)

11,667

11,667

No options were granted or exercised during the years ended
31 March 2010 and 2009.

The options outstanding at 31 March 2010 had an exercise
price of $12.1 (2009: $12.1) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 5 years (2009: 6 years).

BErRaAMRKRZ NGB 26 Income tax in the balance sheet
(a) BEAGRITRZ AR (a) Current taxation in the balance sheets represents:
Y. | Y. /A |
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
A A s OB A3 BLMEME Provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year 14,448 8,575 523 465
£ A #50F 15 i Provisional Profits Tax paid (7,907) (9,972) (181) (773)
6,541 (1,397) 342 (308)
B Uk DLAI Hb [ 81 B ¥E M Provision for tax outside
Hong Kong 11,056 8,236 - -
7 B B IH Current taxation 17,597 6,839 342 (308)
Vo Analysed as follows:
7 H ] AR ] B IH Current tax recoverable (537) (2,091) - (308)
A% A R ASF T A5 B Current tax payable 18,134 8,930 342 -
17,597 6,839 342 (808)




0 By 2R B R

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Bf 55 4 T #5 4F - ¥y Ll JE 91 7~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

206 BREAMFEZ B (8) 26 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)
b E T 78 0% %L Bl JH O A - (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
) A% ()  The Group
BN GEEABERHRRE R The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
WERLIE (G AR A recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
EEEBMT movements during the year are as follows:
ot B REEHZ
BB LRE/ES HE H % # & Lk
Depreciation
in excess of
the related  Revaluation Future
Deferred tax arising depreciation of benefit of
EEBHKA from: allowances properties  Provisions  tax losses Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
“EENENA-H At 1 April 2008 (4332) 15,455 (19,083) (43439  (51,349)
IE FE o Exchange adjustments 19 - 809 6,355 7,183
EHEERIL/ GEA) Charged/(credited) to
(3 5 6(@) ) profit or loss (note 6(a)) 53 (2,145) 5,804 (4,044) (332)
SEZNFE=A=+—H  At31March 2009 (4,260) 13,310 (12,420) (41,128) (44,498)
AZEEAENH —H At 1 April 2009 (4,260) 13,310 (12,420) (41,128) (44,498)
i b, 77 % Exchange adjustments @) - (256) (703) (961)
TR &R L Charged to profit or
(W &E % 6(e) ) loss (note 6(a)) 983 1,785 2,794 2,548 8,110
AoE-FEZH =+ —H  At31 March 2010 (3,279) 15,095 (9,882) (39,283) (37,349)
iy A2KNH (i)  The Company

O B 7 3Rl iR 2 AR A
TH A S A S AR AR R B )

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the balance sheet and the movements during the year

B are as follows:
R ]|
i B
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
the related
BEBLHE KA : Deferred tax arising from: depreciation
$°000
W ZEENEMH—H At 1 April 2008 40
1E 18 45 R FHA Credited to profit or loss (26)
N EENFEZHZ=Z1+T—H At 31 March 2009 14
wEENFENMH —H At 1 April 2009 14
TE 4R 4 R 5 X Charged to profit or loss 60
W FE—FE=H=1T—H At31March 2010 74

2009/10 Annual Report
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206 AR Z AR (80D 26 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)
(b) CHERBEERIEEZEMAG : () (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)
(i) FHE A EE A MR (i) Reconciliation to the balance sheet
Y. | Y /A |
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
$°000 $'000 $’000 $'000
EEFEAMENERZ  Net deferred tax assets
R SE B TE R E recognised on the
balance sheet (51,583) (55,679) - -
wEEEAMENTER 2  Net deferred tax liabilities
R AE i I A A5 T (E recognised on the
balance sheet 14,234 11,181 74 14
(37,349) (44,498) 74 14
() R WER2Z VB Bl IH & E (¢) Deferred tax assets not recognised
R G B RHEUR - ALE R In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r),

# B A s $513,939,0000T (&
EJLAE 1 11,978,0007C) HfE 58 b Ik 4E
Bl TEU A > DR R MR B B S A R R
B 0 R 0 1R K Rl BE T R
L
WoF—FE=H =+—H > A%
B ok i 58 BT s 4R A I At B JH A
E > EF%H%WT

the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $13,939,000 (2009: $11,978,000),
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdictions and entity.

At 31 March 2010, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses, whose expiry dates are:

HEoEF—NWE+ A
H_E—-HE+H

In December 2014
In December 2015

BB LM T AEGEM Do not expire under current tax legislation

(d) 7lcf7Eu Z AE AT B I A (d)
?E H +*E1 ; —

{MI ZEH%E @%ﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁmpzo,ooo
L (ZEEJUE ¢ 50, 659 0007JG)
% 3,998,000t (= FEE JLA

2,508,0007C) ° %ﬁéﬁ/\jfﬁﬁﬂ%w
5N A 2 B RO - T RZ B JE A T
%amETTﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬁTA I(‘)fﬁ%%
T A > R R 4 IR #%
%%m@ﬂ%?iﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ZL
4iE 4 JE & & 4 Al & 10,804,0000C (—
FE I 10,132,00078) & 400,000
Jt (ZEEIE : 251,0000C) -

A 45
The Group
2010 2009
$°000 $'000

728 -
58 -
13,153 -

13,939 -

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2010, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries based in Taiwan and the
PRC amounted to $54,020,000 (2009: $50,659,000) and
$3,998,000 (2009: $2,508,000) respectively. Deferred tax
liabilities of $10,804,000 (2009: $10,132,000) and $400,000
(2009: $251,000) have not been recognised in respect of the
tax that would be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable
that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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27 B AR B B K fil B 27 Capital, dividends and reserves

(a) HEZ5 55 5 5 B)
AR 2 AR R B 4% BB 1Y AR
A A TR B S5 A RE #2588l 3R 0 )
# oo AT 2 A RE 2R T 5 1 AR A
oA OR B ) 5E IS A BL R B

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details
of the changes in the Company’s individual equity between
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Y /T The Company
J& A
Wk Bk BB RS BIERE RAKRH RREEA WH
Capital
Share Share redemption Capital  Retained
Note capital  premium reserve  reserve profits Total

REZZANENA—H Balance at 1 April 2008

MR Changes in equity:

s 1 2 Lapse of share options

B B R B Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year

AEREEEIRR R Dividends declared in respect
of the current year

AR B A T s AL Total comprehensive income
for the year

R-ZFN4EZH=+—H Balance at 31 March 2009
EZZEAENA—H and 1 April 2009

MR Changes in equity:

I 1 2 Lapse of share options

A 2 R B Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year

AAEEDEIRRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year

AR B A T A AR Total comprehensive income
for the year

R-%F—%4==+—H Balance at 31 March 2010

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

76,916 133,383 4,646 22,638 465,974 703,557

- - - (238) 238 -
b)) - - - - (95376) (95,376)
27(0)() - - - - (15383 (15,389)

- - - - 52,806 52,805

76,916 133,383 4,646 22,400 408,258 645,603

- i - (77) 77 -
o) - - - - 43073 (43,073)
27(0)() - - - - (23075 (28,075)

- - - - 148903 148,903

76,916 133,383 4,646 22,323 491,000 728,358

®) B (b) Dividends
() ASAEBEHEAL 2 B A A LS R DM £ ()  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
JE SR B S attributable to the year
2010 2009
$°000 $'000
B H IR K 3 AT R Interim dividend declared and paid of
5 155 Al 15 cents (2009: 10 cents)
(ZRFIJUE + A 10Ul per ordinary share 23,075 15,383
WEH AR ER SRR Final dividend proposed after the balance
JBE 5L 8 A B A B 403 il sheet date of 40 cents (2009: 28 cents)
(ZFEIFE - & Rko8HEAl) per ordinary share 61,533 43,073
84,608 58,456

T A B AR A R TR 2 R I
SMRIEAH DR A -

2009/10 Annual Report

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.
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27 B A BB K G (s

b KE
(ii)

(#)

AR o B4 R RE A AR 4 D
i JI SRR A RS (22 A 45 R S 41t
e K R AT)

27 Capital, dividends and reserves (continued)

(b) Dividends (continued)

(i

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year

2010 2009
$°000 $'000
A B AR B L S A i Special dividend in respect of the previous
Ji 7 s Il (B 7 47 TR % it o financial year, approved and paid during
FRA) (ZF R LA the year, of Nil cents (2009: 30 cents)
A 1% 3035 Il per ordinary share - 46,150
R B EOAE B 2R R R Final dividend in respect of the previous
B 283 Il (2 5 4F 1 2 Jik o financial year, approved and paid during
FRA) (ZFZ LA the year, of 28 cents (2009: 32 cents)
i i 327k Aill) per ordinary share 43,073 49,226
43,073 95,376
c B iy (c) Share capital
() EERCEATRA ()  Authorised and issued share capital
2010 2009
It ¥ i B4
No. of No. of
shares shares
(000) $'000 ('000) $'000
BB : Authorised:

T % 1 0.507C ¥ 4 i
O AT M AR A

fully paid

2 BRR AN AR SO R
R > BERFA A
—HEEALNFE E®E 2 BE
E o JIT AT 3 2 i 2 B AR m
R R AT SF A o

T AR B B ORAT 2
e HE 2 W K

Ordinary shares of $0.50 each

Ordinary shares, issued and

200,000 100,000 200,000 100,000

153,832 76,916 153,832 76,916

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at
balance sheet date

A7 15 390 1B
CERRREZHATARABEE

—E—

Exercise period

16 February 2005 to

nAEZA+TIH 15 February 2015

g TE IS ERE 2 FE A N RERR
WA N ] — 3 A e o 5% SE I
JBERE 2 BT Z2 SR S T R R
R 51 55 2518 o

A7 18 81 2010 2009
Exercise price H #HH
$ Number Number

12.1 11,627,000 11,667,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these
options are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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27 B AR B B K% Gk s
@ 2R

(@

() M v 8 L SBC A S 1) ik A

% 1 ik 5 B R A% A T [0] £ A 78
Iy AR BB AR )
48Bf& . 55 40HE IE ] o

(i) JBEAS 5 A

J A fts A 6 455 AR B B 5 565 1) i)
TE T R P A K R A 2 & sl
HORMERE R TALEBMER 2
B MR B R AT 2 B AR
BN REE -

(i) A RE i A5

A1 REE fif # €1 435 7 3 ¥ A1 36 B
B R T E A 2 B AT BE S 2
B o % Tl R4 R 55 1 ()BT
i 2 o At R R B

(iv) T 2 W] 2 THE ot A

e A TG A6 5 25 R R T
i I ME Wy 2 A 2 R ME e g o

Hf 5 IR 7

AR A ZH A HREF
WA TR S 7oEBIHEHE - A
7 & ] 3 2 IR T RE £R T 2 o AR AR
% /% 491,090,00000 (& E JLA -
408,258,0000C) ° &R A% > #HE
7 UR K ) M B A % B I 401
(ZEF IR« 58 B A 28l o
A AR B A 3661,533,00000 (—&FE
JUEE © 43,073,0007T) © #% % S
EEHM KRR LA -
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27 Capital, dividends and reserves (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(e)

() Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B
and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to the employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in note 1(q)(ii).

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 1(u).

(iv) Associate’s share option reserve

It represents the Group’s share of an associate’s share
option reserve, which arose on the granting of share
options.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance was $491,090,000 (2009:
$408,258,000). After the balance sheet date, the directors
proposed a final dividend of 40 cents (2009: 28 cents) per
ordinary share, amounting to $61,533,000 (2009:
$43,073,000). These dividends have not been recognised as
liabilities at the balance sheet date.
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27 B A BB K G (s

]

Bk

ARSI G AR 2 F AR
A S5 ] E 400 A A A A A R YRR
B JETAZ A SR B K T A B 2
FE it B AR5 A B L % % 5 B A o
TTRE > A A T RO A [ i 2 A
FC At A 55 A B A A AR

A B R N K WA T R B LR
AZRNE o DU AE 0 R ] 1 DL
A REERG R R OK PR
AR DA AE 2 b i e PR B 2 T AR
-5 o Slf PR RS BR 0N 2 SR AL
A TR AR A R

HRERAT SR A% 56 1 % (5 B5 5 A
Hf K0T RO A L R A L AR
W5 o WLULT & - A% 5 I 6 85 5 A
FLE B R RS (LA wh SR K A
B DA B R AT TR R At B A )
FAFHEEIRIRE > BB KB S
fEY) o K94 B G AR A T A R i AR
9 IF 2 At BEUR A S

ROF—FE . ARMAR FE
JUAE 2 e+ HE SR (K T 22 £
B VB AL R L o A
S, 8 %5 S o A BT 7 R
i MR 2 Ao W
IR~ 1 M R M A~
TS L A £
# -

27 Capital, dividends and reserves (continued)

(0]

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
S0 that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio.
For this purpose the Group defines net debt as total debt
(which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
trade and other payables) plus unaccrued proposed dividends,
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2010, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2009, was to maintain a relatively low net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

2009/10 % #_
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27 e BB B il (s 27 Capital, dividends and reserves (continued)
o HBAREH(H) () Capital management (continued)
AR FEN _FENE=A= The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 March 2010 and
TR EBFEESREEAL 2009 was as follows:
EWF
AEHE y N/
The Group The Company
Bt 5k 2010 2009 2010 2009
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
WA Current liabilities:
— T A B 3 S b JBE £5F 3k - Trade and other payables 22 168,488 155,221 11,482 7,238
—RITER KB X - Bank loans and overdrafts 23 46,959 14,518 - -
215,447 169,739 11,482 7,238
FiE A& - Non-current liabilities:
— AT B R - Bank loans 23 1,551 3,467 - -
56 % Total debt 216,998 173,206 11,482 7,238
o BRIR R Add: Proposed dividends 27(b)(i) 61,533 43,073 61,533 43,073

28

o B kB EEHY

Less: Cash and cash equivalents 21(a) | (214,550) (238,615) (56,313) (132,691)

15 5 5 Net debt 63,981 N/A 16,702 N/A

ME %5 %8 Total equity 944,470 798,247 731,358 645,603

W BEIR S Less: Proposed dividends 27(0)() (61,533) (43,073) (61,533) (43,073)

208 R 3 g AR Adjusted capital 882,937 755,174 669,825 602,530

6 5 ¥ 1 A Net debt-to-adjusted

B E capital ratio 7.2% N/A 2.5% N/A

A ) B FCAT: 0] B g 2 W 3 AN 2 A Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
H M I 2 AR K BRI e externally imposed capital requirements.

ol N R A 28 Financial risk management and fair values

AR e R ET AR B Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
TEE) A~ R RR AN R B o A% 4R IR in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
FOih HoAh B R 2 B AR DL S AR exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in
JU A it Bh T S A A R B o other entities and movements in its own equity share price.

A% AR R A Tl B R 4 R BOK RO R The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
vk > a2 )a B o DA BRI - management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

2009/10 Annual Report

these risks are described below.
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28 4 ik L BE A% B R A Ao R ()

(@) 158 m K

A W 2 A B A B T A IR
AL AR~ B R~ Bl
AR HE MRAT 2 A7 3k - HHE D
M5 BRI A B B 4K PR
AR HEB 2R -

R S K R B kT 0 AR
B ERBR - ESBEEEZI
R B f7 i Al S st il o A
B AT AL 4R PO R S B EOE 2
WA A Bk B 2 AT RE ) o I
R PR AT M i BT 2 T AR 8 s
BRBIAN B < Bk o 5% S TR 3K )
A EE B OH W 30 90 H A EI ) -

A A 1 2 i UCBEE A R AT A R
S5 PR 2 W R MEALR
Fms H P 2 BB BRAh o BN
SFREFEEFSE o BE A
AL ES F & A REETH
HAE -

AR iR 32 2 AR BB )Y 52 45
F@nlrrsor 2  ARER 2%
W5 P A 47 36 b B 52 2 8 %0 Ja\ B O &
RGN - F
g AEEMRERZENEF 2 &
R B TR A i AR R AR P AR
JE B e

PG R A 2 B W58 I B AR SR AT A7
AR > R LR R B R AR
F AT o WUk > BB E A
RS T e AmET LR
£ o

28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, listed equity securities and debt investments
and deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days to 90 days from the date of billing.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted on a
recognised stock exchange, except where entered into for
long term strategic purposes. Given their high credit standing,
management does not expect any investment counterparty
to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk only arises if the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers.

Investments in held-to-maturity securities and placement of
bank deposits are normally with counterparties that have sound
credit ratings. Therefore, management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

2009/10 % # |
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28 4 ik B AE B R A Ao A (80

(@)

®)

& B B (4)

A S TR % 2 A5 SRR B B BR O
FHUTRE AT TR AR ) S EE AR
& b A TE BA B E 2 MR T (E D B AT
] (L FBE AR o B AN 4 T T A 2 B
Y& (B 5 26 30(a) B T &) A -
P S 2 (S T I S NS
oy R YE A AR B 2 AT AT At 4
PR ASEE BN &5 R L A
PR BT AR 2 2 A A L B b BRI Bt 5 56
30(a)/H #; 5% -

A7 B A S [ TR ol iR % L At B ik
MR 52 2 A5 By 2 — 2 &
0 5% WO WY RE 2R 2006 -

i B & & B

AR R AT AR
Bl LI B i R 1R A
Pl R BRI 2 Bl &
oKk O £ 65 B M T B SE
ZAZHEK TR R A AR ER G
HEE) o A G2 2 AR O o ) B A
A R ) 2 U B B R
SRR G 2 AE UL o DR fR LAY
L B A ST B R B 2
i IR S BRI M 2 e R K
mESEE > DB REN 2R
B HEE®HK -

TR LE B KA R F 2 AT
BB BN A H 2 /B A B
H oo A B2 B 5845 %K T BLBL
&R (B AR N KRG 2
FURAT R A FE > RIRASHE A
W2 R G DA R A AR AR
2 F A RE AR AT A B R H R
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(@)

()

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. Except for the financial guarantees
given by the Group as set out in note 30(a), the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at the
balance sheet date is disclosed in note 30(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 20.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:



28 4 b B AY PE K A o R AE (s

(b) B & 2 b (A)

7k 45

RITEX
RITEH
T B3
T R 4%
HoAl R 3¢
Rf & R
e ff B

I

HE fif 5 9%

FE At A 3 % BESE & H Other payables and accrued charges
Amounts due to related companies

JE A5F B 7 2 R 3K

Bank overdrafts

Bank loans

Trade creditors

Bills payable

QOther payables and
accrued charges

Amounts due to
related companies

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group

28 Financial risk management and fair values

9,844 12,617 - - - - 9,844 12,617 9,844 12,617
37,217 2,074 1,587 2,074 - 1,665 38,804 5703 38,666 5,368
35,649 38,256 - - - - 35649 38256 35649 38256

5,206 1,377 - - - - 5,206 1,377 5,206 1,377

124,444 113,667 - - - - 124444 113,667 124444 113,667

3,189 1,921 - - - - 3,189 1,921 3,189 1,921

215549 169,912 1,587 2,074 - 1,655 217,136 173541 216,998 173,200
The Company

Bills payable
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28 4 R B AY P & A AL MA () 28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(© F 3 ki (©
AL 2 R R E B A 3R BE
B o H AT B R R K E R R A A 2
18 B8 (A 42 [ 43 Al 7K 32 B 4 i R
B QN /N 1= = [ <8 N
9] B e L ] o B AR % mT A R A A
KPR RS G A B
BRI o 45 g 2 AR AR
F R AL A F T o

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group monitors the
level of its fixed rate and variable rate borrowings and manages
the contractual terms of the interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored
by management is set out below.

() FI =N ()  Interest rate profile
RS AEE G RN GH The following table details the interest rate profile of the
H Z B S 4 Pl o Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date.
AR5 The Group
2010 2009
BB & % M EHBEAEY A
Effective Effective
interest rate Total interest rate Total
% $’000 % $’000
LR ZIE X% 8 Variable rate borrowings:
BRAT L Bank overdrafts 2.00 9,844 5.03 12,617
AT K Bank loans 1.90 35,100 - -
44,944 12,617
B e #) & A 1% Fixed rate borrowings:
$RAT B K Bank loans 4.60 3,566 4.60 5,368
1 £% 84 Total borrowings 48,510 17,985
T 6 2 F) & A £ Net fixed rate borrowings
i REpLx as a percentage of total
net borrowings 7.4% 29.8%

(i) OB o by

Wo_FE—FE=ZH=+—H >
B % T A L th 58 LR B AN B2
il B FE T B 10018 %
R I R B N Y
% 6 A S f B s R D
Jin #1318,0000C ( — & & JL4F ¢
84,0007%) ° %5 HE4n 2 HoAth
Uy A € R R BT T
W 2 2 R 2 o
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(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately $318,000 (2009: $84,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not have been
affected in response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

©

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
and other components of consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk at the balance sheet date. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the
balance sheet date, the impact on the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of equity
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2009.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD”), Euros,
Pounds Sterling, Renminbi, Macau Patacas (“MOP”) and
Japanese Yen (“JPY”).

Given that the Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and MOP are
pegged to the USD, management does not expect any
significant movements in the USD/HKD and MOP/HKD
exchange rates and considers the exposure to foreign currency
risk in relation to the USD and MOP to be low. However,
management acknowledges that it is exposed to fluctuations
in the exchange rate for the other currencies.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of
Group’s entities whose functional currency is HKD, in either
HKD or USD. Given this, management does not expect that
there will be any significant currency risk associated with the
Group’s borrowings.

2009/10 % # |
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

@

Currency risk (continued)

() &z A JE B ()  Exposure to currency risk
T AR Y A B AN E A & The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
H R 2 AR R > W5 exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
AN B TG R B 2 B from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
REELABY LR currency other than the functional currency of the entity
Shz W EHE N A o IR 2 to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
e H Y A W B RE DL R amounts of the exposures are shown in the original
~ o TEBEIFAEA AR R 2 currencies and with the net exposure shown in HKD,
R HA FEE 2R 4 38 7 s WK AR o % translated using the spot rate at the year end date.
T A0 2 2 BB I R A Differences resulting from the translation of the financial
42 18 2 Ty fe £ W i AR 2 2 statements of operations outside Hong Kong into the
AR B FEAE A e Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
% B i3] N L3l il
United States dollars Euros Pounds Sterling Renminbi Macau Patacas Japanese Yen
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
KEH The Group
BVOES L IBAE  Tradeand other receivables 2,876 117 4 1 40 - 1807 1531 818 b4 94,384 1568
RBERBL%EN (Cash and cash equivalents 22 2899 16 b 27 3 1,285 4778 3630 1949 © 111,009 2040
BAESRIUMERS  Todeand ofer peyils 60 (69 @8 6 @8 @ 68 (3 - By (08 2w
FENALESR Loan o assoclate and
3 & accrued interest 4346 136 - - = - g - = - g -
Gt £ Net exposure arising fiom
KEREHK recognised assets and
ke liablties 7333 8283 (123 (458) (191) (4 @219 (7Y 4448 2460 194520 (19333
SN HKD equivalent 56,808 63962 (7959) (4684  (2.241) (49~ (4g61) (813 4314 2387 16340  (1527)
KA The Company
BRESRALREER  Tadeand other recelvables - 2 - - - - - - - - = -
BERBL%EN Cash and cash equivaents 10 258 - - - - - - - 87,562 -
ERES MBS Tadeand other payables - T - - - - - - - -
BEMAL R Loan to associate and
Eitlg acorued interest 436 4346 - - - - - - - - - -
g Net expostre arsing fiom
EERaf recognised assets and
fifh 5 liabilties 435 6866  (498)  (139) - - - - - - 87,562 -
Sk HKD equivalent 3761 53212 (5,207) (1377) - - - - - - 73% -

2009/10 Annual Report
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(@)
(i

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the balance sheet date had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rates between the HKD and, the USD and
MOP would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the USD or MOP against other
currencies.

The Group
Euros

Pounds Sterling
Renminbi

Japanese Yen

E SRS OB > AT AR A
A5 T 25 B R A A O H AR I
et E M EHREN > O
A H 2 HEAR SR Ty TT) 2 A
A BE B B AR ik M)A RE 2 2 B IR

EXis 2 X

2010 2009

e A % AR B i A1 Ko PR B

IE % i A 2 i 2 i F1l 2
A/ ¥,/ L/ wm,/
(F¥%) (W A4) (F ) (8 >)
Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits

% $000 % $'000
5 (316) 5 (196)

(5) 316 )} 196
5 (94) 5 (21)

(5) 94 5) 21
5 (206) 5 (340)

(5) 206 )} 340
5 682 5 (64)

(5) (682) 5) 64

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date for presentation purposes.
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(continued)

(d) S B (4) @

Currency risk (continued)

(i) BORE M (B

THORAE 20 M7 AR A T ME A 2
S By O IS EORT R A 4R 1 Py
R A7 00 &5 5 A 4 B T B
SR B 2 xR RS
B AR £ 7 S8 O7 2 T RE
W A B L 2 R i e AT MR K
G0 Mt AN B0 95 5 1 S 3B 2 W
BR B E AL 2 29 &
WINEEZERH - “FEXF
09 53 A7 1% [F] — J% MR AT o

(e) M A5 M b

AAEMWERZ A EBERES S L
T AR 38 i AR 2 A A R B
(2 BBt 5L 26 181H) -

AT AR E 2 EiT B R B 2
BT e B O R W R AR R
B 5 M8 7 55 75 A S 18 B KA AT
KEHEZRBEUAAEEREE &
oK 2 o LEM G TR AL H
T 8% A 2 R Al 4% A7 36 00 M 1 DLAE £
AL -

AL A EHERE I FERY
FWE i o HR B R ER L
F 2 R B A W TS H A E R
(A wP A T B B A A R
W w5 B AR o — AT E D
U E Al o

S -FESA SR A
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(e)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the balance sheet
date, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from

listed equity investments classified as trading securities (see
note 18).

Certain of the Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based
on daily monitoring of the performance of individual securities
compared to that of the Index and other industry indicators,
as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified
in terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the limits
set by the Group.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term
strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least
bi-annually against performance of similar listed entities, based
on the information available to the Group, together with an
assessment of their relevance to the Group’s long term
strategic plans.

At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that changes in the relevant
stock market index (for listed investments) with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) as follows:
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(e) Equity price risk (continued)

O BE 23 M T B s i i A M 5 B
AREEB N AR HE KL > W e
JRE RS B S A H AR B BRI R
9 A I8 A e Bk ) < P T R T 4R Y
B0 A% i ) (e PR B Y M) A I Iy
AL MBI B AT 2
2% SO AR (B I AR AR A T8 B AT R IR T 4
B M B R B AR ) > B — UL
At 588 BOH Ak R B o P At B ) )Y A
RGO B & TR AR AR H
A B T A e A BT RE AR ) 2
APAG o 5% 00 M G 4 B R T JUAR Py
2 A A 2 e 4T -

o R A
) ARBEEARZ S/ TA

TR BT AR Gl
WD 7R E M T H 3
B ] T E 2 = AR oA (EE AR
APEAREME M T AR
B ST ARZARBEESE
MREH A R EET RS
& T 2 e AR AR A B )
Mo ZERMBAEMT:

(0]

A% 4 The Group
2010 2009
i F) K% AR B i A B AR &
A R B Az A B R B it F] 2
SURKm M,/ g#m/ e m
(W) (W A4) () ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit
(decrease) in after tax  (decrease) in after tax
the relevant and the relevant and
risk retained risk retained
variable profits variable profits
% $°000 % $'000
Bk Ll gEZ Stock market index
JBe Wi 4 ¥ - in respect of listed
investments:
ERECE i Hang Seng Index 5 98 5 41
©) (98) (%) (41)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) that would
arise assuming that the changes in the stock market index
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to equity price risk at the balance
sheet date. Itis also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index, and
that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2009.

Fair values

()  Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet
date across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instruments
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.
The levels are defined as follows:

2009/10 % # |
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

®

Fair values (continued)

() Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input
is not based on observable market data

A E B AR A ) The Group and the Company
3 — % W% = M5k
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
o Assets
fEEE w2z @ %  Trading securities 2,352 - - 2,352

iy DAAREEAINAEZ £RHT
BN A fE(E

A7 4 LT 0 B B
R E—FEZH =
(EVNIEE T ST

(@ &AM
T SCHEZE A DAAG A B RE S5 17 - 18~
23 % 30(a)VE JiT 4 BF B T 2 2 28 118
2 F )5k KBt -
() HH

A SAEE R A A 2 W
FHE > NGBS S A -

(i) BB R A
I8 FUAR A B 7 R AR B 4

2 BUE - WIEEM M TR 2
CLEAR R ST A
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(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2010 and 2009.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial
instruments set out in notes 17, 18, 23 and 30(a).

()  Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs.

(i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future

cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(g) Estimation of fair values (continued)

(i) Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to
interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.

29 Commitments

(a) At31 March 2010, the total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

2010 2009
L/E 3 3 i LES F Aty
Properties Other Properties Other
$000 $000 $000 $'000
A 4 The Group
— 4N Within 1 year 96,091 1,001 103,340 1,454
— AR HAEN After 1 year but within
5 years 102,253 3,003 68,558 2,793
198,344 4,004 171,898 4,247

b WZF-FE=ZHA=1—H R
A A i bR 2 AR B AE R

(b) At 31 March 2010, the total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties are

I EREN BT - payable as follows:
2010 2009
$°000 $°000
A2 H The Company
—F RN Within 1 year 3,840 3,840
— R AHTLAE N After 1 year but within 5 years = 3,840
3,840 7,680

B A B 2 T ok
FREGCERERA 2 L2 TR
FH 2 PR O W E A 1208 -

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and
buildings classified as being held under finance lease and land
held under operating leases are described in note 12.
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29 Commitments (continued)

(®)

At 31 March 2010, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties

are payable as follows: (continued)

Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect of
a number of properties and office equipment held under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to three years, with an option to renew the lease upon
expiry when all terms are renegotiated.

Certain non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
properties included above are subject to contingent rent
payments, which are charged in amounts varying from 10%
to 31% (2009: 10% to 31%) of the monthly gross takings at
the leased premises in excess of the base rents as determined
in the respective lease agreements. The above disclosures in
respect of operating lease commitments for properties
excludes contingent rent payments, which are not committed.

30 Contingent liabilities

(@)

()

Guarantees

At 31 March 2010, the Company has issued guarantees to
banks to secure banking facilities of subsidiaries amounting
to $181,084,000 (2009: $96,966,000). The guarantees were
issued by the Company at nil consideration. The transactions
were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to measure
reliably the fair value of these transactions in accordance with
HKAS 39 had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly, the
guarantees have not been accounted for as financial liabilities
and measured at fair value.

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it
to be probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under any of the guarantees issued. The maximum liability of
the Company at the balance sheet date under the guarantees
issued is the amount of banking facilities drawn down by the
relevant subsidiaries amounting to $55,353,000 (2009:
$22,633,000).

Claims

The Group’s subsidiary in France was the subject of various
claims from certain former employees of the subsidiary relating
to their period of employment with the subsidiary. The claims
were either settled or dismissed by the courts during the year.
The settlement had no significant impact on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.
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31 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with and amounts paid to Yangtzekiang Garment
Limited, its subsidiaries and associated companies
(“Yangtzekiang Garment Group”) (certain directors of the
Company are collectively the controlling shareholders of both
the Yangtzekiang Garment Group and the Group):

2010 2009

$000 $'000
WS TG S (B 3E) Purchases of traded products (note) 29,062 44,103
T (B EE) Sales of traded products (note) 2,148 4,976
JE AT 4 2E A 4 (B 5E) Rentals payable on properties (note) 3,854 3,864
JRE A5 A5 2 2 Management fees payable 804 804
JRE AsF A5 B A (Y 5E) Building management fees payable (note) 288 288
& AT Commission paid 428 805

BFSE A T A M R VL A AR T AR SR

(b)

B B G 28 L Bl LA > Bk > BLE A
Oy W AR SR B 2 B A G -

il W YN TN
S Gy Z AR K B AR AT B ST 5 = 3 R
G ER It 2 AR R e iR AR o
BTy TR 2 AT B - SERS M
N R R AR BE TR - &5t
Do AE B 5 i S HR - BE 2R R AT R
N AR T £ AR B 2 RS i A
P AR T i o R VT RAC A I M A 4R
lf 48 Bt _E Al IR B R S AT ] B B A
# o

SHL 6 4 P B IR A (138 %
Fe 1) K TR A ] O(T 8 4 e 4R
M) Tz LT (AR A4
EHEANFMBAFAZETESR
[e] IR oy 6 6 22 M < ¥ S e R

Note: As certain directors and their associates are collectively the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of Yangtzekiang Garment Group
and the Group, the above transactions constitute connected transactions for
the Group under the Listing Rules.

The purchases and sales of traded products and rental
transactions were, in the opinion of the directors, carried out
on prices and terms comparable to those offered to or by
independent third parties. The management fees were charged
for administration, business strategy, personnel, legal and
Company secretarial work, accounting and management
services provided. The management fees are determined
annually between the respective parties after negotiations
having regard to the cost of services provided. Yangtzekiang
Garment Group and the Group have not entered into any
management contract in respect of the said services.

(b) Transactions with Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited (“HTGH”)
and its subsidiaries (“HTGH Group”) (a director of the Company
and certain directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company
are both directors and shareholders of HTGH):

2010 2009

$°000 $'000

AR 2 R Interest on loan granted 1,907 1,911
JE AT R B 2 Service fee payable 171 93
JEE A 4 2 A 4 Rental payable on properties 853 536
JRE Wi 40 2 L 4 Rental receivable on properties 993 -

HEERDHAEL S < B LA
BEL i 37 55 = 3 HUAT 4R I 2 (B AR
BT AR o 36 42 BE A B IO R A
7l 5w S AT AT B G A o

The rental transactions were, in the opinion of the directors,
carried out at prices and on terms comparable to those offered
to or by independent third parties. HTGH Group has not
entered into any management contract in respect of the said
services.

2009/10 % #_
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31 EKBBALRS H)
() M-Z—FE=H=1+—H (BHhH ~

31 Material related party transactions (continued)

(¢) Outstanding balances due (to)/from related companies as at

JRE Wi BR 2 s W A R AT 31 March 2010:
2010 2009
$’000 $’000
(FEAD) /Bl 7T 8 K Amounts due (to)/from Yangtzekiang
£ H Garment Group (2,987) 2,338
JRE AT 8 6 ¥ M 4R T 3K Amount due to HTGH Group (196) (289)
JRE W B B 4 A A Loan and accrued interest due from
BN AR HTGH Group 33,681 33,681

LR N W) ERAS R D AR B
I A2 3 0 R IRF A > R Bt sE 55 17(a)
TE I % R 2 M i T i A A K
B SRR 2 95 Gk R A o

32 WYy

F S BR A o B R R 28158 (2% %
CAEEERTAR) [HB % 25 R et
5 it o Q) S 8t [AE A B > e
BETHHEET > DG AFEEZ I
EX > e —F-FF=H=1+—H
1k 4R B OB BR 2 T H 4R It B RO -
% S R RE S O 48R R KRR 28 .

33 1wk Ak sk B A i

B 5E 2R 12(c) ~ 13 > 25 28T 43 Jill i A A1
B EyE - WL ERE - % H R
BB LR 2 0 B AE 2 AR 3% B FL R B
22 B R o hFh AW B R E 2 HAth &
B AR

(@) WG K 0k 1E

fikd A7 1 DB B A B 3k 2 B T (L W)
RE e i (] > 5% 55 B A RE WOBL
[Tl e - T 3k B M5 15 wT BE o AR %
G 1t & Y4 J) 55 36 5% [ # ek (e
P Tl 0 o B SR B 2 R T (o
PR A B > DL A AT B AT i el
WA RREEN T - BUURR
Z A [ S RE AR R R E 2T
3 o] it 4 365 T8 5 OR A Bl U B AR
PrBl o AL FE A A 2 B R
DA it 7 LT i (] < RE 43 BE M 4R 2
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The outstanding balances with related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, except
for the loan and accrued interest due from HTGH Group, the
repayment terms of which are disclosed in note 17(a).

32 Comparative figures

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation
of financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating segments, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the current
year’s presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect
of items disclosed for the first time for the year ended 31 March
2010. Further details of these developments are disclosed in note 2.

33 Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 12(c), 13, 25 and 28 contain information about fair value of
the assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of
investment property, fair value of intangible assets, share options
granted and financial instruments respectively. Other key sources
of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of trade receivables

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade
receivables may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. The
recoverable amount of trade receivables is the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return of
similar assets. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of recoverable amount.
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33 Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

(b) Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on this review,
a write down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ preferences,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimation
and the income statement in future accounting periods could
be affected by differences in this estimation.

(c¢) Deferred tax assets — future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r),
the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses as at the year end based on
management’s assessment that it is probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates
are changed.

34 Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
Interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2010 and which have not been adopted in these financial

A A B R 3 B o statements.

Effective for
H 3 g accounting periods
B 46 1% 2t 20 beginning on or after
(FBMERGEAESE (BTA) £BEAR ZZFNELA—H  HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations 1 July 2009
(Fib &t iR Sorsk 2 537 GOhBE “EFFAELA-H  AmendmentstoHKAS 27 Consolidated and separate 1July 2009

FIE financial statements
BB REEN 2 ZEEAELA-HE Improvements to 1.July 2009

(20094)

A SR B OE 5T AG % S A TR R UCRE
2 8 > B H ATk > AL R
2GR H AR B AR AR 2 K 3
A T 5 51K D0 M R RS B 2 T RE R R
% o

LR

HKFRSs 2009 or 1 January 2010

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Company’s results of
operation and financial position.

2009/10 % #_
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The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

ia sy Al ¥ By 57 E N A R G 3 LI RE R
1(Q)HA) - Slff L A7E AR B2 [ 14 P 5 R A 1 i B

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(c) and
have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

UKL LETRES

Percentage of ownership interest

CHIRSERA/ ARMZ WAMT HREAT

Place of RRAER  RRER # i)
b/ incorporation/ Particulars of issued ~ Group’s Held Held
J3iR  establishment andpaidup/  effective by the bya
A4 Name of company BEWY  and operation registered capital interest Company  subsidiary  £EXH Principal activity
EHEARAT Michel Reng Limited B HongKong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - RKHE  Gamentwholesaling
REE  andretaiing
JERZE (PR)FRAR  GuyLaroche (Ching) Limited A HongKong HKS2,000,000 100 100 - WA&HE  Garment wholesaing
RILEEARAT YGM Marketing Limited F# HongKong HK§2 100 100 - RKHE  Gamentwholesaing
RZE  andretaing
YGM Fashion Limited YGM Fashion Limited F# HongKong HK§2 100 100 - BKHE  Gamentwholesaing
BEHRAA Bentwood Limited A Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 100 - WEME Properyleasing
EHR management, and
$LEFER investment holding
YOMTi 540 B (] YGM Marketing A Macau MOP100,000 100 100 - BKFE  Gament retaiing
FRAH (Macau) Limited
RILERARAR YGM Clothing Limited B HongKong HK$200 100 100 - HEHE  Garment wholesaing
YGM Clothing (Overseas) ~ YGM Clothing (Overseas) "% @& % * Briish Virgin Islands US$2 100 100 - REEE  Gament manufacturing
Liited Limited BE
RIER (R%) YGM Clothing sl AR The People's
FRAH (Dongguan) Limited A Republic of China HK$25,900,000 100 100 K&EE  Gament manufacturing
BHHGTFILE S Guangzhou AR The People’s RMB300,000 100 - 100 BKHE  Gament wholesaing
FRAFAH Yangtzekiang Trading | Republic of China REE  andretaiing
Company Limited##
BEIBEARAD  YGM Trading s VR The People’s 351,000,000 100 - 100 HKHE  Gament wholesaing
Company Limited A Republc of China REE  andretaiing
HY (L HE YGM Marketing s VR The People's US51,000,000 100 - 100 HKHE  Gament wholesaing
FRAR (Shanghal Company A Republc of China REE  andretaiing
Limited
EREAARARAT  Aquascutum Intermationel A Hong Kong HKS2 100 - 100 R KA Trademark promotion
Limited fRHE  andlioensing
Aquascutum International  Aquascutum International JEB United Kingdom £ 100 - 100 #4 RFFF Trademark ownership
Licensing Limited Licensing Limited [EAHE  andlicensing
YGM Mart Limited YGM Mart Limited B HongKong HK$2 100 100 - BEER  Ivestment holding,
BHER  trademark ownership,
RFFH promotion and
WRHE  lconsing
Michel René Enterprises ~ Michel René Enterprises & & **British Virgin Islands 1S$50,000 o8 08 - RKHE  Gamentwholesaing
Limited Limited & L% andretaling

2009/10 Annual Report
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Percentage of ownership interest

CRIERMRERA/ A%MZ WARd HREAA

Place of (31230311 1 i it
I/ incorporation/ Particulars of issued ~ Group's Held Held
Wik establishment andpaidup/  effective by the bya
A4 Name of company BEWY  and operation registered capital  interest Company  subsidiay  £EEH  Principal activity
Luk Hop Garments Luk Hop Garments Fi - Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - WERE  Properyinvesiment
Limited # Limited # * HK$1,000 100 100 -
Squash International Squash International E#  Hong Kong HKS? 100 100 - BERE Propertyinvesiment
Limited # Limited #
Aramis International Aramis International A6 Hong Kong HK$20 100 100 - WERE Propertyinvesiment
Limited 4 Limited # * HK$100,000 100 100 -
KHERARAA S FarFost Gate Limited # & HongKong HK$8,500,000 9 9 - WERE  Property investment
FEEHRAD 4 Parahood Limited # F#  Hong Kong HKS6,000 80 80 - WERE  Popery investment
Trothy Company Limited #  Trothy Company Limited # Fi Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - WERE Propery investment
YGM Printing Inc. # YGM Printing Inc. # HEBEL Briish Virgh Islands Usst 100 100 - BEER hvestment holding
BE
FlE2ZEHMAR ¢ Hong Kong Securty E#  Hong Kong HKS? 100 100 - BEER hvestment holding
Systems Limited #
B A0FAMAR # Hong Kong Securty E#  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - 100 ERIRAEE  Provision of securty
Printing Linited # ZBE®  printing and general
husiness forms printing
Société Guy Laroche # ~ Société Guy Laroche # EH France EUR1,239,000 100 - 100 B4 R Trademark ownership
[EFEEL  andlcensing, and
HAHE  gament wholesaling
YGM Studio Limited YGM Studio Limited E#  Hong Kong HK$21,060,000 100 - 100 BEER  Investment holding
* HK$46,800,000 100 - 100
YGM Consortium Limted ~ YGM Consortium Limite & Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - BEER Ivestment holding
GLFuropa SA. # GLEuropa SA # LB Belgum FURG2,000 100 - 100 BEER  Investment holding

JIE AT AT I A 2 T 3 B 2R M B o HLLT A5 TR AP
* T 5% 15 I HE AR AT R A

All the issued share capital represents ordinary shares or registered capital except where noted by:

*

ok

Represent 5% non-voting deferred shares.
Represent non-voting preference shares.

BeAk s LR AR

ok

ke

*****

YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited i w1 [ 4% 2 £ 7 -
A £ i 48 % 1) Michel René Enterprises Limited °
WS T A AR R v Y B A o

In addition, the following represents:

Hkx

*****

YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited operates in the PRC.
Michel René Enterprises Limited operates in Taiwan.
These are entities established under the laws of the PRC.

# 530 JF o 5 G B SR R T R A F o % AE MRS IS G SR S S T A R R A R B R R e R AR B A S O
M6 AT B 2 B MRETA910.0% 4 12.6% -

# Companies not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total turnover constituting
approximately 10.0% and 12.5% of the related consolidated totals respectively.

#OFEARMEGHEA RS E S JLEMA o T -

##  The English translation of the company name is for reference only. The official name of the company is in Chinese.

2009/10 4 #
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Principal Associates
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R B A G W AR A R

B WA N A ER

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group:

LEVEET
REERER
ARAA
Hang Ten (BV)

ILC

Hang Ten
Enterprises Limited

RILEERD
ARAT
Hang Ten Phils., Corp

Hang Ten Enterprises
(Pte) Ltd

Hang Ten Korea Corp

Hang Teng Enterprises
(M) San Bnd

ILC Trademark
Corporation

HTIL Corporation, B.V.

International Licensing
(Galifornia) Corp

FhERLR
fRAA

ILC (Cyprus) Limited
BEARLA
HTEL (Macau) Limited

Name of associate

Hang Ten Group
Holdings Limited®

Hang Ten (BV)

ILC

Hang Ten
Enterprises Limited

Yangtze Apparel Taiwan
Enterprise Limited

Hang Ten Phils., Corp

Hang Ten Enterprises
(Pte) Ltd

Hang Ten Korea Corp

Hang Teng Enterprises
(M) San Bnd

ILC Trademark
Corporation

HTIL Corporation, B.

International Licensing
(California) Corp

HTEL (Hong Kong)
Limited

ILC (Cyprus) Limited
Precise Delta Limited

HTEL (Macau) Limited

2009/10 Annual Report

RHRH

(28

3Ll

A

it Mk i

ik a2

ALl

ALl

ALl

ALy

ALY

ALY

it Mk i
ALl

ALl

3Ll
it i
GALY

Form of
business
structure

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated
Incorporated

Incorporated

i
1]

s
L
BAmE

EEEX
il

E

LHi R

SRBA

Particulars

Place of of issued and
incorporation  paid up capital
Bermuda HKS$98,225,000

Britsh Virgin Islands ~ US$103,821

Briish Virgin [slands ~ US8639,830

Britsh Virgin Iskends ~ US$50,000
Talwan NT§100,000,000
Philippines PHP50,000,000
Singapore SGD1,000,000
Korea KRW50,000,000
Melaysia RMS500,000
Briish Virgin Islands ~ US$30,000
The Netherlands NLG40,000
United States US$10,000
of America
Hong Kong HK$2,000,000
Cyprus ~ Cypriot pounds 1,000
Hong Kong HKS1
Macau MOP25,000

i A

Proportion of ownership interest

HERZ
il ]
Group’s
effective
interest

2048

2048

2048

2048

2048

1126

2048

2048

2048

2048

2048
2048

2048

2048
2048
2048

A4
WH
Held by
the
Company

2048

HERH
REER

REER

BEER

BEERR
W%
WKE &

Bt %

WKE &
St

RKEE
%t

RKEE
Rt

HKEE
Rt

R R
R

ERLEL

AR R
EHE

BKEE
%t

BRER
REER

WKEE
Bt %

Principal activity

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding and
wholesale of apparel

Retal and wholesale
of apparel

Retail and wholesale
of apparel

Retail and wholesale
of apparel

Retail and wholesale
of apparel

Retail and wholesale
of apparel

Trademark ownership
and licensing

Trademark licensing

Trademark licensing
and management

Retail and wholesale
of apparel

Investment holding
Investment holding

Retal and wholesale
of apparel



HTIL Holdings

Corporation N.V.

Hang Ten (Phils)

Holdings Corparation

Hang Ten (Ching)

b

Group Limited

EERS
ARAH

Han Tone Enterprises

Limited

Merry King

Investment Ltd

Ever Brave Holdings

f

[

Ltd

REK (L)
ERARAA

R
ARAH

HTIL Holdings
Corporation N.V.

Hang Ten (Phil)
Holdings Corporation

Hang Ten (Ching)
Group Limited

Hang Ten Trading
(Shanghal) Limited

Han Tone Enterprises
Limited

Merry King
Investment Ltd

Ever Brave Holdings
Lid

Ever Brave Catering
(Shanghal)
Management
Co., Ltd™

Guangzhou Hang Ten
Trading Limited

it AL

it ML

it ML

it ML

it ML

it ML

it M

EiaLl

it fhAE

LS
SR

Incorporated

KERL
33
KRR
&

HEAR
L

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

KRR
3
KEEX
K&
KEEX
K&

“HEAR
L]

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

HEAR
L

Incorporated

Netherlands Antiles ~ US$6,000
Brtish Virgin Islands ~ US$50,000
Brtish Virgin Islands ~ US$20,000
“The People’s  US$2,000,000
Republic of
China
Brtish Virgin Islands Usst
Britsh Virgin Islands ~ US$1,200

British Virgin Islands ~ US$160,000

“The People’s  US$1,800,000
Republic of

China

“The People’s RMB500,000
Republic of

China

W AT <) 5% 5k WA 3 2 A BB 58 BT bl i A W AN > Lh B Sy JF BT A R R o
All of the above are unlisted corporate entities except for where noted by *, which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

W AE Oy E O AR o i AN 2 T -

These are entities established under the laws of the PRC.

AN A2 HOETEARE Ll R .

The English translation of the company name is for reference only. The official name of the company is in Chinese.

2048

2048

2048

2048

2048

14.34

2048

R

HEER

REkR

WK% E
Bt

fEkk

REER

REER

A R
R
ERRH

WK% &
Eis s

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holaing

Retall and wholesale
of apparel

Investment holaing

Investment holding

Investment holding

Trademark licensing and
provision of catering
management service

Retall and wholesale of
apparel
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Results

Turnover

Profit from operations
Valuation gains/(losses) on
investment properties

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses
of associates

Non-operating (expense)/
income, net

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of
the Company

Minority interests

Profit for the year

Assets and liabilities

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Lease premium
Interest in associates
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company

Minority interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Earnings per share

Basic
Diluted

Dividend per share

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $’000
1,032,188 1,022,818 1,110,115 971,936 991,055
144,699 101,571 102,515 88,724 171,936
17,500 18,600 13,400 (13,000) 20,500
(4,366) (6,992) (4,729) (1,712) (910)
32,140 21,252 34,099 17,072 29,478
(453) - 45,589 - 7,899
189,520 134,431 190,874 91,084 228,903
(24,071) (14,387) (14,630) (11,616) (30,531)
165,449 120,044 176,244 79,468 198,372
161,913 118,121 170,997 80,187 196,587
3,536 1,923 5,247 (719) 1,785
165,449 120,044 176,244 79,468 198,372
209,462 223,108 200,888 181,375 190,826
110,124 109,344 108,489 107,709 287,238
8,927 9,912 11,696 9,727 9,928
85,317 96,864 128,150 109,962 139,592
43,175 42,893 35,128 34,642 69,781
50,047 57,204 65,006 55,679 51,583
266,970 270,956 330,883 313,801 211,307
774,022 810,281 880,240 812,895 960,255
(73,372) (63,027) (20,063) (14,648) (15,785)
700,650 747,254 860,177 798,247 944,470
77,342 76,916 76,916 76,916 76,916
604,487 650,765 761,649 702,386 845,497
681,829 727,681 838,565 779,302 922,413
18,821 19,573 21,612 18,945 22,057
700,650 747,254 860,177 798,247 944,470
$ $ $ $ $
1.05 0.77 0.52 1.28
1.04 0.77 0.52 1.28
0.45 0.45 0.75 0.38 0.55
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